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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I apologize for

          3  it being late. I apologize for being late. I was

          4  with my father, who had an 11:30 doctor's

          5  appointment that went on and on and on. He wasn't

          6  with the doctor since 11:30, we waited, as many of

          7  you know.

          8                 The first item we're going to take

          9  care of has nothing to do with the oversight hearing

         10  that we're handling today. It has to do with item,

         11  Intro. No. 403-A. Citywide, 20055033 LLY. A local

         12  law to amend the Administrative Code of the City of

         13  New York in relation to allowing civil penalties for

         14  neglect of a landmark site, or a site within an

         15  historic district.

         16                 This was an item that was laid over

         17  in September, and there was some other, some

         18  adjustments made to it to address some of the

         19  concerns that members had.

         20                 If it's okay with the Land Use staff,

         21  I'd like to take a vote on this item. Do we have a

         22  quorum?

         23                 Do any of my members have any

         24  questions or colleagues, or even not colleagues?

         25  That wasn't you, Chris.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But I'll take

          3  it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If I could just

          6  request, I thought I had requested to have my name

          7  added, but if the Counsel or Clerk, or whomever,

          8  could add my name as a sponsor of the bill, I would

          9  very much appreciate it. And I just want to

         10  congratulate Council Member Avella for this piece of

         11  legislation, which will be very helpful in my

         12  district, and very helpful Citywide. I think it's

         13  really terrific, and would be honored to have my

         14  name added as a sponsor.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 Any other?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Council Member

         20  Perkins.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I had made

         22  the similar request, and I would like my name added

         23  as well, just for the record.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, Councilman

         25  Avella, do you want to mention anything, since you
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          2  were the chief sponsor of this bill?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thanks, Mr.

          4  Chair.  Just to reiterate basically what this bill

          5  does.  I mean, it has been unfortunate that there

          6  had been landmark property owners who, rather than

          7  protect their property and preserve it for future

          8  generations, to get out of the landmark law, have

          9  allowed the building, by neglect, almost to be

         10  demolished.

         11                 It has been a loophole in, many of us

         12  feel in landmark law, for many years, and from what

         13  I understand, it was included in the original

         14  legislation, but at the last minute, was left out.

         15  It is something that the preservation community, the

         16  landmark community, has been every interested in

         17  supporting.  I'm happy that this bill, to have

         18  introduced this bill, and that it has moved

         19  remarkably quickly through the City Council, having

         20  only introduced it in June, and we are here today to

         21  vote it out of Committee and then vote before the

         22  full City Council.

         23                 It will also enable the Landmarks

         24  Preservation Commission to, in effect, go after the

         25  property owner, civily, for huge amounts, should a
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          2  property owner allow their property to go into

          3  neglect.  It could not, we would not be here without

          4  the help of the Landmarks Preservation Commission

          5  and the Commissioner himself, the Administration,

          6  the City Council, the Speaker, and of course, you,

          7  Mr. Chair, for your help in moving this legislation

          8  ahead.  This is, really, an historic movement in the

          9  preservation movement, and I appreciate your support

         10  in passing this legislation now.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Before we take a

         12  vote, I just want to introduce some of my colleagues

         13  who are here.  Those that are not here I'm not

         14  interested in introducing them.  Council Member Gale

         15  Brewer on my far left, Council Member Christine

         16  Quinn, Councilman Tony Avella, Councilman Bill

         17  Perkins, Charles Barron and Councilwoman Annabel

         18  Palma, and of course, our wonderful land use staff.

         19  Do any of my colleagues have any questions on this?

         20  Good.  So, we'll take a vote.  I recommend a yes

         21  vote.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Chair Felder.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Perkins.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Barron.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Aye.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Palma.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Yes.

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Vote stands at

          7  four in the affirmative, none in the negative and no

          8  abstentions that are first the full Land Use

          9  Committee.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         11  Again, I want to apologize to all of you for being

         12  late, because I know how precious time is, and I'm

         13  sorry that I kept you.  There's nothing else that I

         14  can say.

         15                 I just want to make some opening

         16  brief comments and want to thank everyone who has

         17  come to participate in this Oversight Hearing.  This

         18  Hearing's on the administrative practices of the

         19  Landmarks Preservation Commission.  I want to

         20  highlight that just one more time.  This Hearing is

         21  on the administrative practices of the Landmarks

         22  Preservation Commission.

         23                 The concerns which resulted in this

         24  Hearing were first raised by a group of advocates,

         25  including those from the Women's City Club, Historic
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          2  District Council and individuals, particularly

          3  Carolyn Kent and Elizabeth Ashby (phonetic).  This

          4  Spring, the group met with staff of the Land Use

          5  Division and raised a series of issues related to

          6  changes in the procedures used by the Commission,

          7  particularly those relating to public access to

          8  documents and other information, and to the review

          9  process for modified applications.  The two examples

         10  I'm giving you are very specific ones.  They're not

         11  generic ones, and the reason -- no, it's no problem,

         12  she shouldn't give her a seat. I'll give you my

         13  seat.  No, you have to stay here.

         14                 Okay, I was trying to emphasize the

         15  two examples that were given because we, I want to

         16  make sure that those of you that are here and

         17  interested in testifying or interested in hearing

         18  others testify, understand the parameters of what

         19  this Hearing is about.

         20                 Each of the speakers will have two

         21  minutes, but only, I heard somebody say three.

         22  What's your name?  Yea, nice meeting you, but it's

         23  only going to be two.  You can speak as quickly as

         24  you want.  I'm just saying that it's not going to be

         25  more than two minutes.  It's not because I don't
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          2  have the patience to listen to it.  It's just that

          3  we have a lot of people and I want to try to make

          4  sure that all those that want to say something, and

          5  especially if you want to add something, that

          6  there's enough time.  So it's two minutes.  In fact,

          7  if you look at the clock, that's the proof that it's

          8  two minutes.  Not that I didn't tell them to change

          9  it a few minutes ago.

         10                 I can appreciate that many of you who

         11  are here today have come to discuss the landmarking

         12  of a specific district or building.  I can give you

         13  examples by the e- mails that I have received.  I

         14  can tell you it was a pleasure having, you know,

         15  getting so much attention.  I haven't gotten so much

         16  attention in a long time.  But, that's not what

         17  today's Hearing is about, and my staff has been very

         18  clear in explaining it to anybody who has e- mailed

         19  us or called us, to get clarification as to what the

         20  purpose of this Oversight Hearing is and to make it

         21  clear. However, that discussion is not in the

         22  purview of the oversight of this Hearing.

         23                 I will remind you that this Hearing

         24  was requested by advocates to discuss internal

         25  process of LPC, not the landmarking process itself.
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          2  This Oversight Hearing will not discuss the mandate

          3  of the LPC either.  That's not what this Hearing is

          4  about, and it will not discuss the democratic merits

          5  of the landmark process, landmarks process, either.

          6  That's not what this Hearing is about.  If you have

          7  come to testify to that effect, I apologize, but

          8  those topics are meant for another Hearing at

          9  another time.

         10                 In fact, Councilman Perkins had a

         11  great interest in a Hearing, maybe at a future date,

         12  there will be a government ops hearing to address

         13  some of those issues.  But, if you wish to, but not

         14  this Hearing.  Though your argument may be

         15  meritorious, I will be compelled to cut you off.

         16  That doesn't mean literally, it means to stop you

         17  and I will not allow you to continue in the interest

         18  of keeping the discussion germane. Speakers will

         19  otherwise, as I said, have two minutes to speak and

         20  your testimony should be short and relevant.

         21                 Finally, let me just add that no

         22  matter how much all of you want to speak or many of

         23  you want to speak.  We're not going to have you

         24  repeat the same things over and over again. So, if

         25  you're sitting here and you hear, you know a slew of
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          2  speakers for a half an hour talk about the exact

          3  same thing you wanted to say, I don't have a problem

          4  with you coming up and saying I agree entirely with

          5  so and so.  But, I will not allow you to repeat the

          6  same thing.  Even if your voice is more melodious

          7  than the one that said it earlier.

          8                 So, that's, having said that, we are

          9  honored to have the Chair of the Landmarks

         10  Preservation Commission, with some members of his

         11  staff, Bob Tierney, who'll be testifying first.

         12                 MR. TIERNEY:  Chairman Felder, is it

         13  on?  Okay. Thank you Chairman Simcha Felder.  Does

         14  the two minute rule apply to me?  Thank you very

         15  much.  You pointed out correctly that I do have the

         16  senior members of the staff here because in the

         17  nature of an Oversight Hearing I think it's

         18  important that, that they be here to be able to

         19  answer and help in answering and providing

         20  information, should the need arise, and Diane,

         21  Jackie, or Mary Beth Betts,  Mark Silverman, to

         22  going from far left to me, and then Rhonda Wist and

         23  Brian Hogg (phonetic) to my right.

         24                 Good morning, good afternoon, excuse

         25  me, Chairman Felder and Honorable Council Members.
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          2  I'm Bob Tierney, Chairman of the Landmarks

          3  Preservation Commission.  As you know, the

          4  Commission is the City agency responsible for

          5  preserving our City's architecture, history and

          6  culture by designating and regulating landmarks,

          7  interior landmarks, historic districts and scenic

          8  landmarks.  Mayor Bob Wagner and the City Council

          9  created this Commission in 1965, after the

         10  destruction or sort of energized, if you will,

         11  appalled, by the destruction of the original

         12  Pennsylvania Station, which caused New Yorkers to

         13  realize that historic preservation was essential to

         14  the future well- being of their City, and something

         15  had to be done about it. It was an act of, as

         16  Senator Moynihan has called it, an act, a terrible

         17  act of civic vandalism.

         18                 Next April, the Commission will be

         19  celebrating its 40th anniversary.  That's exactly on

         20  April 19th, which is 40 years to the date that the

         21  local law was signed by the Mayor, and we will be

         22  hosting an all day event on that date to honor the

         23  accomplishments and, we believe, overwhelmingly

         24  positive impact this agency has had on the

         25  character, development, and economic vitality of the
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          2  City over the past four decades.  So, I certainly

          3  welcome the Chairman and the Members of this

          4  Commission, the Members of this Committee to all of

          5  those things.

          6                 Let me give you an overview of the

          7  agency, in general, and then I can take, of course,

          8  take the questions and comments and oversight.  The

          9  Commission is an expert agency, which, by law, must

         10  consist of at least three architects, a (sic)

         11  historian, a realtor, a planner or landscape

         12  architect, as well as a representative of each

         13  borough.

         14                 11 Commissioners appointed by the

         15  Mayor -- some of this is a little basic, but I

         16  thought I'd start at the beginning and take, and go

         17  through it and I'll try to speed it up where

         18  appropriate -- three architects, historian, realtor,

         19  planner or landscape architect, as well a

         20  representative of each borough. 11 Commissioners

         21  appointed by the Mayor, as you all well know, with

         22  the advice and consent of the Council for staggered

         23  three year terms.

         24                 As Chairman, I'm the only full- time

         25  paid member of that Commission.  The other ten
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          2  Commissioners donate their time and expertise

          3  without compensation for, minimally, four full days

          4  a month at public hearings, which many people in

          5  this room are familiar with, and public meetings

          6  where they decide, the Commission decide, based on

          7  everything brought before them, what to designate,

          8  and then how to, how to regulate those properties

          9  that ultimately are designated.

         10                 Commissioners then, not just those

         11  four days, four or five days a month, for public

         12  hearings, and it's quite extended and quite active,

         13  but also Commissioners are engaged in site visits

         14  and review of material outside the, outside the

         15  Landmarks office and so on.  So, they are selfless

         16  public servants and, as I said, serving without

         17  compensation and, and rendering, I believe, a great

         18  public service to the City.

         19                 In addition to the 11 Commissioners,

         20  the agency has approximately 50 employees, some of

         21  whom I have, of course, told you are here, the

         22  leadership of the Commission.  The staff is, I

         23  believe, one of the most highly skilled and

         24  dedicated in the City.  Most of whom have, most of

         25  them have advanced degrees in relevant fields, such
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          2  as historic preservation, architecture,

          3  architectural history, archeology, planning and the

          4  law.

          5                 We have three main departments,

          6  research, which studies, documents and evaluates the

          7  history and architecture of proposed landmarks;

          8  preservation, where research, which Mary Beth Betts,

          9  to my left, heads; preservation which is in charge,

         10  Brian Hogg is in charge of and basically does

         11  regulation of designated landmarks, the Certificates

         12  of Appropriateness, the permits, the vast bulk of,

         13  of a lot of the day- to- day work of the Commission;

         14  and finally, the enforcement, and I'll get to all

         15  three in a summary fashion.

         16                 The Commission has designated

         17  approximately 23,000 buildings over the time period

         18  I've talked to, since 1965.  That is a lot of

         19  buildings, but it's only less, it's less than three

         20  percent of the total number of structures in New

         21  York City.  We currently designate approximately 12

         22  individual landmarks and four historic districts a

         23  year.  We receive almost 200 requests for evaluation

         24  every year, that's RFE, is our jargon for that, for

         25  both individual landmarks and historic districts,
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          2  from the public each year.  So, that's 200.

          3                 As I said, that's winnowed down to,

          4  on an annual basis, approximately 12 individuals and

          5  four districts.  The districts can be big -- God

          6  bless you -- and the districts can be large and they

          7  can be all sizes.  But, there's no district that is

          8  much less than 30 or 40 buildings, and some of them

          9  can be as high, as large as you well know.  Here,

         10  the west, the Village, the West Side, as many as, in

         11  Brooklyn Heights, as many as 2,000 buildings.

         12                 So, we currently designate the 12

         13  individuals and four a year, 200 requests for,

         14  approximately 200 requests for evaluation from, for

         15  individual landmarks and districts from the public,

         16  which supplement the Commission's own priorities for

         17  designation.  We have inventories.  We have, we have

         18  our, our own notions and our own research that, on

         19  what is warranted, and that is combined with the

         20  pools that come out of the RFE's and there's,

         21  there's a, there's a lot of material to work with.

         22  A lot of judgments to be made, a lot of knowledge to

         23  be assimilated, history to be winnowed through and

         24  then we take action.  So, it's all in the nature of

         25  trying explain, and perhaps a little too lengthy,
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          2  and I apologize for that, the nature of the expert

          3  agency, which I think is important to know in terms

          4  of, as you evaluate and oversee, if you will, or

          5  give oversight to our procedures.

          6                 Four full- time and two part- time

          7  staff of the Research Department possess an

          8  extraordinary collective knowledge of architecture,

          9  architectural history and the history of New York

         10  City.  They are responsible for assessing RFE's and

         11  for researching and writing designation reports for

         12  those buildings and districts that the Commission

         13  has decided to pursue.

         14                 Anyone who's familiar with those

         15  designation reports, particularly those most

         16  recently, by recently, I mean over the last five to

         17  ten years, knows what, what thorough research goes

         18  into that, what encyclopedic descriptions there are

         19  and how important and significant that work is.

         20  It's not something that's just breezily knocked off

         21  and put out.  I think if you go to our website, you

         22  go to any number of sources for the, for those

         23  designation reports, I think that would be borne out

         24  and Members of this Council know that very well.

         25  The designations take place in a given Council
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          2  Member's district and those reports are shared with

          3  and responded to by individual Members and, so, I

          4  think you know whereof I speak.

          5                 There's always more to do, however,

          6  no matter what, we've got the 200, we've got 23,000

          7  buildings and I'm afraid the job's never going to be

          8  fully completed, particularly as the City continues

          9  to grow.  It's just never ends and as more buildings

         10  come on line, if you will, there are statutory

         11  eligibility, the minimum statutory eligibility, is a

         12  30- year life, if you will.  If you aim to be, you

         13  need to be in existence, the buildings do, for 30

         14  years, before they become eligible for our

         15  consideration.  It's 50 for the Federal Register,

         16  but for our purposes, it's 30.  So, every year,

         17  there's more, more buildings coming on and more that

         18  we look at.  We go in, and that basically is the

         19  process that I'm describing.

         20                 Setting priorities requires a careful

         21  evaluation of each buildings in each districts,

         22  architectural, historical and cultural importance in

         23  relation to the other buildings that we already have

         24  designated and is considering designating.

         25  Commission balances its own priorities and my staff
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          2  resources, the interest of elected officials,

          3  community groups, citizens, owners and then we

          4  engage in the process.  That's a sober, serious

          5  endeavor that requires all of the judgment,

          6  knowledge and experience that the Commission can

          7  bring to bear and I think that's considerable.

          8                 Designation of landmarks is not a

          9  popularity contest.  We don't take polls and we

         10  don't, we listen to public opinion and opinions of,

         11  of opinion makers, but it is not a up or down, in

         12  this era of polls, as we're particularly right now,

         13  in the next couple of weeks, that's not what

         14  designation is.

         15                 If the Commission decides to move

         16  forward with the designation process for an

         17  individual building or historic district, then we

         18  hold a public hearing, and in most cases, bring the

         19  proposal to a public meeting for a vote.  As you are

         20  all aware, after the Commission acts, the

         21  designation goes first to the City Planning

         22  Commission, and then ultimately to the City Council

         23  and to this distinguished Committee and then,

         24  ultimately, up through the rest of the Council

         25  process, to the full Council for a vote.
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          2                 The Commission, and then I'm going

          3  go, that basically is a summary of the research

          4  designation part of the office.  Let me run now to

          5  regulation or as Brian, as we all call it,

          6  preservation, it's the Preservation Department, but

          7  what it does on a day- to- day basis is regulation.

          8  We, and that, and the Commission has that equally

          9  important task, I believe, of appropriately and

         10  responsibly regulating work on the designated

         11  buildings that we have under our jurisdiction.

         12                 Before I discuss the mechanics, I'd

         13  like to outline what I believe are the goals of the

         14  Preservation Department and the, and regulation, in

         15  general, as we do it, or try to do it.  First and

         16  foremost, we regulate to preserve the significant

         17  architectural features and characteristics that gave

         18  rise to the designation in the first instance.  The

         19  Landmarks Law sets out specific criteria standards

         20  and procedures to ensure that this happens.

         21                 Second, it's imperative that this

         22  regulation be efficient, fair and understandable.  I

         23  know that many, from many conversations with you and

         24  your colleagues, that the Council fully endorses and

         25  shares this view.  Not only do I, as the head of a
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          2  regulatory agency, want owners to have a positive

          3  experience when they apply to work on their

          4  buildings, I believe it's essential to the long-term

          5  success of historic preservation itself.  That this

          6  agency not only be perceived as efficient and fair,

          7  but actually be experienced as efficient and fair to

          8  the people who interact with us on any, you know,

          9  the hundreds of people on any given week, month or

         10  year that interact with us. Applying for the permit,

         11  actually, a basic permit, to do work on a landmark

         12  property is the most common interaction that an

         13  owner has with the Commission.  To the greatest

         14  extent possible, we want that experience, obviously

         15  to be seemless and positive.

         16                 To improve our efficiency in this

         17  regard, we have, over the years, promulgated an

         18  extensive body of rules, which enable the issuance

         19  of staff- level permits.  The Commission issues

         20  approximately 8,000 permits a year.  Remember, we've

         21  got 23,000 buildings, 8,000 permits a year.  At the

         22  rate we're going this year, we are, we could top

         23  actually 10,000.  It's a, there's a lot of activity

         24  out there and I think that's all, that's all good,

         25  that's all positive, that's a sign of the City's
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          2  health and the economic vitality and we think it's

          3  good.  It puts pressing burdens on Brian and his

          4  staff, but we're managing that.  We're ratcheting up

          5  resources in a, in a significant, I think a

          6  significant way, all modest, but significant way to

          7  help deal with that.

          8                 About 95 percent of the permits then

          9  are issued at staff- level.  The rest go to the full

         10  Commission for a public hearing.  The rules are on

         11  their, on the website and through the public

         12  information office, and I have them here, and have

         13  been adopted through CAPA, meaning everybody has had

         14  the opportunity, through a public hearing, to

         15  comment, to react, to refine and then, ultimately,

         16  adopt it.  They can also be changed and are changed

         17  as through experience.

         18                 The rule changed also through CAPA,

         19  not arbitrarily changed, obviously.  The rules help

         20  streamline the regulatory process in two ways, they

         21  allow more permits to be issued at a staff level,

         22  enables the Commissioners to focus at the public

         23  hearings on the most complex applications, and two,

         24  they give property owners a sense of certainty.

         25                 Owners know that if they apply to the
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          2  Commission to replace windows, for example, common

          3  example, and include the necessary information

          4  that's in the rules, they can get a staff level

          5  permit in a very few weeks, and that, that's pretty

          6  good. Particularly when, I mean, it may sound like a

          7  long time for windows, but anybody who's had work on

          8  windows and, knows that the, it's a complexed

          9  process.  Sounds simple, but it's not so simple, and

         10  if it meets the rules, we can push it through, and

         11  do.

         12                 So, they help streamline the process

         13  and as the number of designated properties and

         14  applications has grown over the years, our rules

         15  have been an invaluable tool in ensuring that the

         16  process is timely and efficient.

         17                 As I stated earlier, a number of the

         18  applications do not conform to these rules and,

         19  therefore, they're outside the rules.  They're more

         20  important.  They're more, they make changes that

         21  aren't contemplated and they, therefore, go to the

         22  public hearing process, which, by its nature, takes

         23  more time.

         24                 About three weeks prior to a public

         25  hearing -- I'll just outline the process, the

                                                            25

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  procedures, very quickly -- the Commission

          3  distributes its agenda to over 100 interested

          4  parties, this is every agenda we have, and then we

          5  put it on the website.  This is three weeks before

          6  everybody, many people in this room know how we do

          7  this and why we do it, and there's a lot of

          8  information flowing back and forth, and I hope it's,

          9  I mean, and I welcome learning if it's, if there's

         10  an area where we can do more and I that's what I

         11  think would be a, a, certainly a positive part of an

         12  Oversight Hearing like this.

         13                 So, it's published, then it's

         14  published in the City Record, that meets the legal

         15  requirements that Mark tells me we have to meet, and

         16  the applications are then, the public hearing

         17  applications are then also sent to the Community

         18  Boards and the local, and local community groups

         19  that, that have specific interest.  There's 100

         20  groups that get and 100 people that get everything.

         21  But, then when we narrow it down, it gets more

         22  targeted and that goes to the Community Boards and

         23  local community groups.

         24                 Meanwhile, while this is happening,

         25  in fact, if the Community Board, you can't get on
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          2  our calendar in a recent development that we've

          3  instituted, it can't even get on our calendar for a

          4  hearing unless it's gone, they've gone to the

          5  Community Board and certified, and either have an

          6  appointment to go to the, to see it before the

          7  Community Board, or actually take it to the

          8  Community Board.  If they're not doing that, they're

          9  not going on our calendar.  So, it's not required,

         10  as we all know, the legal, it's not a legal

         11  requirement that the Community Boards have that

         12  approval.  But, we just think it's useful, that it's

         13  an important part of process, that is opens it up

         14  better, that the community boards are a way of

         15  letting the public know what is going on, what's

         16  happening to landmark properties, and we think

         17  that's an important, important reform, if you will,

         18  that we've made in the process that I think makes it

         19  even more likely to be open, transparent and

         20  helpful.

         21                 Okay, while the application's being

         22  submitted, the applicants are working with the staff

         23  to prepare presentation boards, and this is also

         24  known to many people here, the details, the

         25  proposals.  The materials are presented by the
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          2  applicants to the Community Board, as I described,

          3  and then to other local preservation groups who have

          4  significant interest and significant things to

          5  contribute to the process.

          6                 Then, finally, goes to the

          7  Commission, Landmarks Commission, for a full public

          8  hearing, and hearings are held on Tuesdays, those

          9  are those four Tuesdays I talked about every month.

         10  Every Friday, before the Tuesday public hearing, we

         11  have our hearing room open to the public with all

         12  the boards, all the presentations, all the materials

         13  that are coming up on Tuesday, and people can come

         14  there, and do come there, to go through it,

         15  carefully, encyclopedically, if you wish, if you

         16  will to know there no surprises in this agency.  So

         17  that what happens, what comes on Tuesday, has been

         18  vetted, not only over the three week period, but

         19  very specifically on the Friday before the Tuesday

         20  in terms of very concrete information and knowledge

         21  about what's, doesn't mean everybody has to agree

         22  with what we're going to do, but there, it's all out

         23  there for everyone to see.

         24                 I don't know of another City agency

         25  whose regulatory process is more transparent.  I

                                                            28

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  know there are many that are, and I don't want to

          3  make judgments, but I can't believe that there's any

          4  that's more.  At our hearings then, the actual

          5  public hearing, the applicant presents to the

          6  Commissioners and then public comment, then we have

          7  public comments and suggestions, and there's a real,

          8  a true interaction back and forth.  I think anybody

          9  who's been to a public hearing, I hope, would, would

         10  validate that, would confirm that.

         11                 Then, the Commissioners consider the

         12  testimony, as well as the staff comments, and then

         13  ultimately make a decision. Often times, not then,

         14  often times there are further deliberations, there's

         15  more work to be done, there's more information

         16  that's needed and so on.  But, that's the first

         17  major step.

         18                 The goal of this regulatory process,

         19  then, which, whether it's a staff level permit or an

         20  application that goes to a public hearing, is to

         21  produce the best possible project that enhances the

         22  building and also the neighborhood that it's,

         23  surrounds it.  After 40 years of regulating landmark

         24  buildings, we've learned, and I've, carrying this

         25  on, I've learned it collectively, that a
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          2  constructive working relationship with owners and

          3  the broader community leads to good stewardship and,

          4  ultimately, better maintained landmarks and this

          5  benefits the entire City, benefits everyone.

          6                 Now, enforcement at the end and then

          7  almost finished.  Since 1998, when the City passed

          8  legislation, City Council, legislation for civil

          9  fines, which we've, Councilman Avella's bill has

         10  actually beefed up today, and we're glad,

         11  enthusiastically support what he's done.  The

         12  Enforcement Department, at the Commission, we've

         13  been focusing on a significant amount of time and

         14  resources on improving enforcement.  The Enforcement

         15  Department has increased from one staff to five,

         16  that's a big increase, still perhaps not enough

         17  people, but it's a huge increase and we're beefing

         18  it up and we're being more aggressive and more,

         19  reaching out more.  And, we've hired an additional

         20  violations officer as part of that five, and I think

         21  people who interact with our enforcement office on a

         22  daily basis probably can begin to see the signs

         23  thereto.  I, again, applaud the Council for acting

         24  on a modest increment, a modest, but significant,

         25  budgetary increment in the last budget that I was
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          2  able to quietly, with City Hall, I can't, I'm not

          3  here demanding more resources, but I am demanding

          4  them in other ways.

          5                 And, you guys very kindly went along

          6  with what we're able to work out at the, at the

          7  eleventh hour, I guess is the way to put it, in the

          8  budget process.  So, the goal of the regulatory

          9  process, whether it's a staff- level permit or an

         10  application -- let me go back to the fines, excuse

         11  me.  So, we've got the, I've just described that the

         12  goal of the enforcement process, excuse me, is

         13  compliance.  That is to say, bringing people into

         14  the system and correcting the work that's been done

         15  without permits.

         16                 Most violations are work that's

         17  actually done without a permit.  You know, either

         18  intentionally or inadvertently, people go out and

         19  start doing work on their house and even though

         20  they're in a landmark district and they, there's,

         21  you know, it's amazing, some people aren't fully

         22  aware and we need to do more and we need to

         23  constantly be reaching out, educating and we try our

         24  hardest to do it, and we're continuing to do it.

         25  But, nonetheless, some owners don't know that they
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          2  need to come to the Commission for a permit before

          3  they do the work.

          4                 So, we get violations and then we try

          5  to address them.  We try to get people into

          6  compliance.  We've published the new enforcement

          7  brochure, which outlines how we enforce that law,

          8  instructing owners on the process to correct those

          9  violations, and also educating owners about what it

         10  means to own the property, in general.  It's very

         11  useful.  I will probably have, I hope to have a

         12  stack of them over here, but we'll make sure that

         13  everybody, of course, gets them, by the hundreds or

         14  thousands.

         15                 The Commission is also working on a

         16  pilot project right now that will send targeted

         17  mailings to the residents of three Brooklyn historic

         18  districts, public education effort designed to

         19  inform the residents and property owners of the Park

         20  Slope, Boerum and Forte Greene historic districts of

         21  the need to obtain permits and why, before they

         22  alter, before buildings are altered.  We think, we

         23  hope, it's a very good idea and should have been

         24  done, of course, as many good ideas, should have

         25  been done a long time ago.  But, we're doing it now
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          2  and I hope that it will be replicated throughout all

          3  the historic districts in the City.

          4                 In conclusion, I want to stress that

          5  the Landmarks Commission, in my opinion, does an

          6  extraordinary job in fulfilling its mission of

          7  designating and regulating the City's landmark and

          8  historic districts.  The Commission is considered to

          9  be a model for other preservation agencies across

         10  the country, and I'm proud to head this group, this

         11  small group of dedicated Commissioners and staff who

         12  have a, such a commitment to the preservation of New

         13  York City for future generations.

         14                 I think, I, you know, we can all do

         15  better.  We're constantly examining our, what we do,

         16  how we do it, and with the input of occasions like

         17  this, very important.  But, I have never, I've been

         18  in and out of government over the years, and I have

         19  never, I talked about, never seen a more transparent

         20  agency. I've never seen a group of more dedicated,

         21  skilled, committed people in government in my life.

         22  I mean there's just, it's just not even close and,

         23  therefore, it doesn't mean we don't make mistakes or

         24  don't know, or do everything we should be doing, but

         25  it's not for a lack of trying, and it's not for a
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          2  lack of expertise or lack of good faith and

          3  integrity.  So, it's with those final pats on the

          4  back, and that's not enough for my incredible staff

          5  and the people who serve this City, I'll conclude

          6  the testimony and thank you again for having this

          7  Hearing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I appreciate it

          9  very much. First, those of the Members who I didn't

         10  introduce earlier, our Minority Leader, Councilman

         11  James Oddo, Councilwoman Helen Sears, Councilman

         12  Leroy Comrie.  What happened to Koppell?  He left?

         13  Okay.  Councilman Koppell was here.  Councilwoman

         14  Margarita Lopez, who's here, and those who are

         15  Members on the Committee, we give you a chance now

         16  to vote on the first item, which was Intro. Number

         17  403A.  Just for your edification, everybody who was

         18  here voted yes, if that's any compelling reason for

         19  you to vote either way.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Comrie.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Oddo.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  The vote

         25  stands open.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I'm going to

          3  allow my colleagues to, who are interested in asking

          4  some questions.  I understand that your staff said

          5  you have til 10:00 p.m. tonight.

          6                 MR. TIERNEY:  That's right, just the

          7  like the old days of the Landmarks Commission  --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right.

          9                 MR. TIERNEY:  We'll go all night.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  But, before

         11  that, before that, it's, I'd like to, you know,

         12  stick my nose into it a little bit.  Then, we'll

         13  take some of the Members and back and forth. All

         14  right, master plans and rules for changes to

         15  structures within historic districts give greater

         16  predictability for both property owners and the

         17  public about what changes are acceptable.  No master

         18  plans or rules were adopted by the Landmarks

         19  Preservation Commission during the most recent

         20  reporting period.  Can you explain why not?

         21                 MR. TIERNEY:  There are many in the

         22  hopper.  I can't explain why during the most recent

         23  reporting period.  But, as Councilwoman Quinn knows,

         24  we've been working full speed ahead on Gansevoort,

         25  which is our most recent designated historic
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          2  district and we've been working full speed ahead on

          3  rules for Gansevoort and they, and I know you've

          4  been very vigilant and persistent on that, and we've

          5  been vigilant and persistent, and what else is in

          6  the hopper in terms of rules --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  You know --

          8                 MR. TIERNEY:  -- Or master plans --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right.

         10                 MR. TIERNEY:  -- Right now, but I

         11  can't explain why none have been, it's a cycle that

         12  constantly goes on --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right, so --

         14                 MR. TIERNEY:  -- And I know that

         15  we're constantly trying to do it --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I'm just --

         17                 MR. TIERNEY:  -- And we've got a few

         18  coming.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I believe that

         20  you're doing holy work.  The question is  --

         21                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  --  But it

         23  really, if that's how it usually is, I think it's

         24  very important that it be that way on a regular

         25  basis --
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          2                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So since --

          4                 MR. TIERNEY:  It will be.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  -- You're an

          6  honest man and you said you have no idea why it

          7  wasn't done, can you tell us when we can expect it?

          8                 MR. TIERNEY:  The Gansevoort rules?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No, that's what,

         10  the way you distracted me.

         11                 MR. TIERNEY:  I see.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I'm talking

         13  about what I asked you about.

         14                 MR. TIERNEY:  Other master plans for

         15  other historic districts.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  That's correct.

         17  Like, a comprehensive one.

         18                 MR. TIERNEY:  Well, we have rules and

         19  regulations that govern everything  --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  All right, we'll

         21  talk after the meeting --

         22                 MR. TIERNEY:  I'm informed that there

         23  are no other master plans under active consideration

         24  for specific districts. We're devoting significant

         25  energies to the Gansevoort rules and then we would,
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          2  we would entertain other possible master plans for

          3  other possible districts.  That's the answer to

          4  that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  And in the

          6  future, just to be stubborn, I would appreciate if

          7  those master plans that, especially those that you

          8  know about, --

          9                 MR. TIERNEY:  Sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  -- Obviously,

         11  now, are, you know, are adopted during the regular

         12  meetings.

         13                 MR. TIERNEY:  Absolutely.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  That's all, no,

         15  it's not a loaded question --

         16                 MR. TIERNEY:  No, I understand.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  If it is, I

         18  don't know where it is.

         19                 MR. TIERNEY:  I wasn't sure either,

         20  that's why I checked --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  All right --

         22                 MR. TIERNEY:  But, no, no, I

         23  understand, I take it in that spirit.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No problem.

         25  Just another two, one or two questions, and then
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          2  I'll turn it over to my colleagues.  Only seven

          3  percent of illegal work complaints were resolved at

          4  the warning letter stage.  This is far below the

          5  target that you've made and far below the level

          6  represented to the Council when the civil penalty

          7  legislation was adopted.  Can you explain this very

          8  low number?

          9                 MR. TIERNEY:  May I defer to counsel?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  It's excellent,

         11  excellent.

         12                 MR. TIERNEY:  Mark Silverman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Sure.

         14                 MR. TIERNEY:  Thank you.

         15                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Council Members, Mark

         16  Silverman. The seven percent figure's actually a

         17  figure that comes from the, I believe, the

         18  preliminary MMR.  It's a point in times, a

         19  measurement of warning letters that have been

         20  resolved in a point in time.  By the end of the

         21  year, the reporting year, it will be, we anticipate

         22  it will be up to the projected 20 percent.

         23                 That said, the warning letter, just

         24  to remind everybody of how the enforcement works.

         25  The Council, when it passed Local Law One of 1998,
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          2  established a, sort of a predecessor to a Notice of

          3  Violation, whereas if we were aware of violating

          4  conditions, we first sent out a warning letter,

          5  which was just, basically, a letter that said you,

          6  we believe you're in violation, please fix the

          7  problem, and if you don't fix the problem, we're

          8  going to issue you a Notice of Violation that's, in

          9  this case, returnable to the Environmental Control

         10  Board.  So, it's a voluntary system, it's a free

         11  bite at the apple, to fix it without getting subject

         12  to a fine.

         13                 What we have found is, people are

         14  responding. With warning letters we have tremendous

         15  response from warning letters, but often times, the

         16  follow- up isn't as great as it should be.  Then, we

         17  then go to a Notice of Violation, which we are quite

         18  successful.

         19                 MR. TIERNEY:  When you said follow-

         20  up, their follow- up, not our follow- up.

         21                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Their, yes, their

         22  follow, in other words, they need to, if there's a

         23  window violation, they need to bring us information

         24  about, either come forward to try to legalize their

         25  condition, and if that's denied, then they have to
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          2  come up with a proposal to change it.  If they don't

          3  quickly come up with a proposal to change it to an

          4  appropriate, approvable window, then it will go to

          5  the next level, which is, is more and for, has more

          6  teeth.  It's an actual Notice of Violation from the

          7  Environmental Control Board that does carry penalty

          8  with it.  So, by it's nature, we were hoping that we

          9  would get more people in, early on, which has

         10  happened, but it, not been as successful in getting

         11  people to actually fix the problems at that level,

         12  as we had hoped.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Again, I think

         14  I've asked you this other times, and you answered

         15  me, I forgot, is it certified, return receipt, those

         16  warning letters?

         17                 MR. SILVERMAN:  The warning letters

         18  that go out by regular mail, the Notice of

         19  Violations are actually served, and I should --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I have a problem

         21  with that.

         22                 MR. SILVERMAN:  -- Also point out

         23  that the Notice of Violation does also have a grace

         24  period built into it.  If you plead guilty to that

         25  violation and apply to fix the work, you will not be
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          2  subject to a penalty at the Environmental Control

          3  Board.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  What, at the

          5  point that you serve it to them, is there any

          6  penalty at that point yet?

          7                 MR. SILVERMAN:  There's been no, no,

          8  the warning letter carries not penalty, the Notice

          9  of Violation does, but you can avoid that penalty by

         10  admitting liability and applying to fix the problem.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right.  In other

         12  words, if you serve, when you serve the letter, the

         13  Notice of Violation, to someone, if at that point

         14  you have proof that somebody received it, right?

         15                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Is that true?

         17                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Sure, yes.

         18                 MR. TIERNEY:  Notice of Violation.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  And do you have

         20  proof?

         21                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Yes.

         22                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So, at that

         24  point, if they decide they're going to come clean,

         25  then there's no problem, no penalty, no interest, no
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          2  anything like that, is that true or not?

          3                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes?  Good.  So,

          5  why would the ECB, after the second, have such a

          6  greater success rate with getting their -- with

          7  getting it paid rather than, I don't understand, you

          8  have the proof?

          9                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Because the Notice of

         10  Violation actually carries with it a penalty.

         11  People respond to that.  The warning letter does

         12  not.  The warning letter says --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  But who issues

         14  the Notice of Violation?

         15                 MR. SILVERMAN:  The Environmental

         16  Control Board.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Uh-huh. I hate

         18  them.

         19                 MR. SILVERMAN:  The statute, when it

         20  was created, when, the statute, when it was created,

         21  built in these, this compliance-driven system.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So, you're

         23  telling me that the ECB serves it, that Notice of

         24  Violation, although there's no penalty or interest,

         25  and then they have a chance within a certain amount
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          2  of time to pay it without any penalty, right?

          3                 MR. SILVERMAN: The Notice of

          4  Violation carries with it a penalty.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  It does have a

          6  penalty.

          7                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Correct.  The warning

          8  letter does not.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  All right, so

         10  now I'll go back to what I asked you earlier.  I

         11  want to know why you don't, why you don't, I don't

         12  want to use the word serve, why people do not get

         13  it, with your having proof of that having receive

         14  it, until the point they're going to be penalized,

         15  no matter what they do. Is that true?

         16                 MR. SILVERMAN:  That is, that

         17  procedure is the procedure set forth in, in the

         18  legislation that was passed. There was no

         19  requirement for certified mail --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  There's no --

         21                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Just, in answer to

         22  your question, I do not believe there is evidence

         23  that substantial numbers of people are not getting

         24  the warning letters.  We do not get huge numbers of

         25  them back.  People apply.  Quite a few people apply,
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          2  but they never perfect their applications to cure

          3  the violations. So, it's not that they don't know

          4  about the violation or are aware of it, they choose

          5  to wait, often times, until the, the ticket, the

          6  Notice of Violation is served, which actually does

          7  have a monetary penalty.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Well, I have,

          9  first of all, I don't care about the legislation

         10  requiring it.  I don't think that's the issue and I

         11  don't know how much, you know, I know it's extra

         12  money.  There's no question, certified receipt is

         13  not a quarter, it's four bucks.  But, I still think

         14  that people should have the opportunity to

         15  understand that it's very serious.

         16                 I mean, if you get a letter,

         17  certified return receipt, rather than something you

         18  got in the mail.  Look, we know that the Mayor sent

         19  out the $400.00 rebate checks.  I have people in the

         20  community who threw it in the garbage and that's not

         21  because they don't like the Mayor.  It's because

         22  they couldn't, they really didn't sense that it was

         23  anything of importance.  You send somebody a piece

         24  of mail, people get a lot of junk mail, you throw it

         25  out.
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          2                 Why shouldn't they be served or sent

          3  either certified, return receipt, and it says very

          4  clearly -- I get mail from people who tell me I'm

          5  going to be locked up from Minnesota if I don't take

          6  out a new mortgage and it looks real.  Right? You

          7  know the type of stuff.  You send people something

          8  that looks real, and you send it to them certified,

          9  return receipt, telling them that if they don't fix

         10  it, they're going to be, they're going to, within 60

         11  days --

         12                 MR. TIERNEY:  Can I jump in, may I?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes.

         14                 MR. TIERNEY:  Being a lawyer, I mean,

         15  which is dangerous to jump in --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yea.

         17                 MR. TIERNEY:  But, I want to look at

         18  this, I can't say, yes, we'll do it all certified,

         19  but I want to find out why it wasn't in the statute

         20  to begin with.  Then, you have a good point, I mean,

         21  some people, actually, perversely enough, I think

         22  actually throw away certified or don't look at it,

         23  and then read the other stuff.  But, anyway --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Then the next

         25  hearing, at the next hearing, I'll tell you, why are
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          2  you doing it certified and not the other way.

          3                 MR. TIERNEY:  Okay, yea, touche',

          4  good, I will look at it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No, I just think

          6  that people, you know, with tickets and everything

          7  else --

          8                 MR. TIERNEY:  I know.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  -- People are

         10  being clobbered over the head and why should the

         11  first opportunity for somebody to decide, I want to

         12  repent and pay the ticket, be after somebody

         13  clobbered them over the head.  I think I have more

         14   --

         15                 MR. TIERNEY:  I hear you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  -- Confidence in

         17  people and if they get notification and they really

         18  notice that something is serious, and it says, in 60

         19  days you're going to be, have to pay double, I think

         20  your success rate will go higher.  I certainly would

         21  like to aggravate the hell out of ECB.  Why should

         22  they have a 99 percent success rate than your lower.

         23                 MR. TIERNEY:  Get ours higher, okay

         24   --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right, all
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          2  right?

          3                 MR. TIERNEY:  -- Sounds like an

          4  interesting proposition.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay, so we have

          6  recorded that you intend to do it certified, return

          7  receipt from now on.

          8                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yea, exactly.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  That' what I

         10  heard as well. Some of my colleagues have some

         11  questions.  Council Member, Council Member Barron.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you

         13  very, very much Mr. Chair.  Good afternoon

         14  Commissioner, I just wanted to, something I've been

         15  talking about for the last two years, and the

         16  importance of the landmarking process is history.

         17  We learn a lot about the history of properties and

         18  it records, it puts on record the histories.  Now,

         19  every Hearing that we have and properties come up, I

         20  always ask the Landmarks Commission staff, what

         21  connection did this building or institution, if any,

         22  have to slavery, in New York City?  And, I want to

         23  know -- slavery in New York City --

         24                 MR. TIERNEY:  Sure, I understand.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  -- Like if
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          2  you get a building --

          3                 MR. TIERNEY:  Of course.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  -- That's

          5  been around since the 1700s or the 1800s.  I always

          6  like to know if there's any, not that they don't

          7  have a bearing on whether they should be landmarked

          8  or not, but just know the history.  So, I always ask

          9  that and I wanted to know if there's anything in

         10  place, any policy in place, any person in place, to

         11  assure that that happens --

         12                 MR. TIERNEY:  It does happen.  There

         13  is a policy in place and there's a person in place,

         14  Mary Beth Betts here, who is very mindful in part

         15  because of you calling it to our attention, as we've

         16  gone through, and Diane has been over at the

         17  Hearings and has brought this information back to me

         18  and we've looked at it, we discuss it.  I meet with

         19  the Research Department weekly and this is one of

         20  the prime items.  Whenever there's and issue now,

         21  and certainly over the last several months, going on

         22  to when this began to be raised, I've instituted, I

         23  want it checked, I want it researched, it becomes

         24  part of the history, and Mary Beth Betts, whose here

         25  with me, does that work and makes sure that her
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          2  staff does that work.  So, it's, it is ongoing. I'm

          3  not -- it is ongoing.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  And the other

          5  thing, of the 11 Commissioners, how many of them are

          6  black or Latino or persons of color?

          7                 MR. TIERNEY:  Let me think, Chris

          8  Moore is an African-American Commissioner from

          9  Brooklyn, works for the Shomberg Museum.  Let's see,

         10  I've just never done a -- Pablo Vengoechea, our

         11  Vice- Chairman is Latino from Staten Island,

         12  Commissioner Vengoechea.  What else, I don't know,

         13  that --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I think

         15  that's about it, Commissioner.

         16                 MR. TIERNEY:  Okay.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Although, I

         18  think we need to improve there, you know, you and

         19  the Mayor can work that one out, I think.

         20                 MR. TIERNEY:  Got it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  65 percent of

         22  the City is people of color, it should be reflected

         23   --

         24                 MR. TIERNEY:  Sure.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  -- In the
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          2  Commission as well.  Now, your staff, having

          3  problems finding a person of color?

          4                 MR. TIERNEY:  No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I noticed

          6  that the --

          7                 MR. TIERNEY:  All these staff here --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  -- Top level

          9   --

         10                 MR. TIERNEY:  -- Because of what I

         11  looked at --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I understand

         13  it's about qualifications and all that.

         14                 MR. TIERNEY:  Well, have been here,

         15  have been at the agency.  I have not brought in any

         16  new people --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I understand,

         18  but I'm --

         19                 MR. TIERNEY:  -- To make changes

         20  here.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:   --  I'm

         22  concerned about, not that they're not all doing

         23  wonderful jobs, but I think that that staffing

         24  should also -- where you could --

         25                 MR. TIERNEY:  Where possible.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  -- Were there

          3  openings --

          4                 MR. TIERNEY:  And I believe in the

          5  rest of the agency --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Excuse me, I

          7  want to interrupt --

          8                 MR. TIERNEY:  -- That's been  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  -- Excuse me --

         10                 MR. TIERNEY:  -- Demonstrated --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  -- Excuse me.

         12  We're going to be consistent with making sure that

         13  the questions and the testimony relate to

         14  administrative issues --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  This is

         16  administrative, that's the staff.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No it's not.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Yes it is.

         19  The staff does administrative work --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  All right, we'll

         21  argue about it, but it's not.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  It is, the

         23  staff does administrative work.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  That's his
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          2  administrative staff.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Then, there's

          4  nothing that won't be administrative, so --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Well, I don't

          6  know about that, but the staff is the part of the

          7  administration and to execute --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I agree, I agree

          9  with --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  -- And to

         11  execute --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  -- What you just

         13  said --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  -- To execute

         15  the administrative work, you have to have an

         16  administrative staff. This is an administrative

         17  Oversight Hearing and I think the question's

         18  legitimate.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  All right, and I

         20  think that your a Talmudic scholar.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I don't even

         22  know what the word Talmudic means, but if it's

         23  something good, I am that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Is it good, it

         25  is good --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Well, I am

          3  that.  If it's something good --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  -- But I am

          5  still, as the Chair, I don't believe that that's so,

          6  and I'd like to move on with the next question.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Well, as

          8  Chair, you have the prerogative to do that.  But,

          9  Mr. Chair, you are wrong, that's an administrative

         10  question.  This is an administrative staff and I

         11  have a right to ask it, but we'll move on.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you very

         14  much Mr. Chairman.  I'm not a member of the

         15  Committee, so I appreciate the few moments.

         16  Obviously, there's a lot of concern here in the room

         17  about a very important issue to all of you.  What I

         18  wanted to say was that I wanted to thank the

         19  Chairman of the Landmarks, Tierney, Commissioner

         20  Tierney, because I don't think  -- my district in

         21  Queens is landmarked and I don't know of any agency

         22  that has spent as much time with the community, as

         23  people have found out that, that it's not so easy

         24  when you get landmark status, and I'm here looking

         25  at what I think may be support for some, for
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          2  landmarking, that is not at the moment.

          3                 I had a meeting this morning with the

          4  Commissioner for those in a landmark area that had

          5  some very big concerns about the rules and the

          6  regulations.  The Commissioner is, balances all the

          7  difficulties and the challenges that landmarks

          8  presents and I wanted to thank you publicly, and

          9  your staff and the Commissioners.  Even though there

         10  are still a few little unresolved issues, he is the

         11  fairest, the fairest and the most reasonable and

         12  rational and I want to publicly thank you.  I have

         13  to thank --

         14                 MR. TIERNEY:  Thank you very much.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  -- The Chair

         16  of the Committee because he is very sensitive to

         17  landmarks, and I want- well, I like to think of you

         18  as being rational, right, and the most cooperative.

         19  I know that when I've had difficulties, he has been

         20  right there so that we could meet with the

         21  Commissioner and work some of these things out.  So,

         22  I want to thank you and thank you Commissioner.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you
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          2  very much.  I certainly want to thank the Chairman

          3  and his staff for many hours of helping us in the

          4  district on the West Side and in general for your

          5  transparency.  I think that's the correct word.  I

          6  have two questions, one is, just on the education

          7  front, I guess that would, you mentioned that at the

          8  end that you're doing some wonderful work, I think

          9  in Brooklyn and elsewhere in terms of getting

         10  information to people who are in historic districts,

         11  targeted mailings kind of thing.  I just noticed, in

         12  terms of education, I wanted to know how you are

         13  thinking about this as, hopefully, more of our City

         14  is pronounced historic?

         15                 I work in our district office, I

         16  think you know we, thanks to your staff, renovated a

         17  storefront back to 1886. It's in a historic district

         18  and it's a beautiful new storefront, maybe the only

         19  such one in the Councils' storefronts.  But, around

         20  us are non- conforming, I guess is the correct term,

         21  and we will work with them because we are in that

         22  community to try to make them conforming, finding

         23  financial assistance.  That's always the challenge.

         24                 So, I'm just wondering in terms of

         25  your thoughts for the future, in terms of process,
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          2  what could be the education in communities that are

          3  not, have the resources to be able to conform?  I'm

          4  talking primarily about historic districts --

          5                 MR. TIERNEY:  Sure.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  -- Perhaps

          7  other than landmarked.  And, in all these cases,

          8  these are small mom and pop owned bodegas, et

          9  cetera, without the resources, and I know, to the

         10  penny, how much it costs to be conforming, so what

         11  are your ideas along those lines?

         12                 MR. TIERNEY:  Well, the two

         13  questions, one is the education part, and we're

         14  doing, we need to do more, always need to do more.

         15  I've talked about, as you said, the things that

         16  we're trying to start doing in Brooklyn and we have

         17  done.  I go out as much as I can, the staff, the

         18  selfless staff that I've talked about, is out in the

         19  communities many evenings with, and Oliver Koppell

         20  knows this, we've been in, up in his district a few

         21  times and others can testify to it, that we've been

         22  out there.

         23                 We invite people in.  We have

         24  community meetings. We hold, sometimes they're

         25  sponsored by many of the people in this room, or co-
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          2  sponsored by people in this room, and we talk about

          3  what it is to be designated a landmark, what, if

          4  you're already one, then we tell, here are the

          5  compliance issues we're having, here's who you talk

          6  to you, here's how we can try to make it, make it

          7  easier to comply.  We, also the website's pretty

          8  amazing now.  I think we're doing quite well in

          9  terms, but that requires another step.  You can have

         10  it on the website, but that doesn't necessarily mean

         11  people are going to either have the computers or the

         12  access to it.  But, for those who do, the website

         13  and our ability now to transmit through New York Law

         14  School on Ross Sandler's (phonetic) website at the

         15  New York City, in his publications, New York City

         16  Law and New York City Land, there's much more out

         17  there about what we do for people to learn and

         18  listen to.

         19                 But, what we really need to do

         20  through Council Members, and you're incredibly

         21  important in that effort, in your storefront, in

         22  your community, is to let people, is to keep

         23  spreading the word.  The brochures do it, but it's a

         24  constant effort, and nothing does it better, I don't

         25  think, than actually being physically out there.
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          2  But, there's a limit to what I can ask the staff to

          3  do.  I go out when I can, we all go out when we can.

          4    We invite everybody in this room and everybody on

          5  this panel to invite us out for more, because that's

          6  what we're constantly trying to do.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right, I

          8  appreciate that and I know you certainly do that

          9  kind of hours.  I guess it's also a funding issue

         10  and perhaps it's more long- term, but it's something

         11  to think about --

         12                 MR. TIERNEY:  Sure.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  -- Because

         14  only funding is going to be able to turn some of

         15  these historic districts into conforming.  All

         16  right, next question I have for the Chairman is the

         17  one without, I want to be very aware of Council

         18  Member Simcha Felder's opening statement and just

         19  talk generally.  One of the issues is when the

         20  Commission, perhaps in your tenure or previously,

         21  decides not to recommend a building or an area for

         22  designation, I want to understand that process.  I

         23  want to understand how does that situation exist and

         24  how is that a transparent process.

         25                 MR. TIERNEY:  Sure.  As I said
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          2  earlier, we have, go back to the numbers for a

          3  second, 200 requests for evaluation a year, roughly,

          4  give or take a few.  So, that 200 or so for historic

          5  districts, for individual landmarks, they come in

          6  over the, you know, they come in through the mail,

          7  they come in through people calling me, they come in

          8  on the e-mails, and there are those requests.

          9                 So, what do I do with them, in the

         10  first instance, before I do anything?  Is give them

         11  to Mary Beth Betts in our Research Department and

         12  say here, you look at this, have your experts look

         13  it, give me, you know, when you, you know, put it in

         14  your pile of priorities, there are other things that

         15  we're doing, of course, all the time, it's not an

         16  agency that can spend all of its time on new

         17  requests for evaluation.  But, but they come in and

         18  there is a process and there, and it starts with the

         19  professional staff, and that's where I think it

         20  belongs, not with me, or with any non- professional

         21  staff to try to make those initial cuts, if you

         22  will.  So, Mary Beth gets it and I ask her, I said,

         23  put it in the, put it in your request machine, if

         24  you will, and do me, do some research for it.  So,

         25  may I continue?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I'm not in

          3  charge here.

          4                 MR. TIERNEY:  Okay, the research

          5  staff then takes on, I look at notes, so I'm very

          6  precise on how we do it, okay? I mean, I do this,

          7  you know, like the back of my hand, but I want to be

          8  sure that I don't incorrectly state it.

          9                 The research staff takes the first

         10  look at the RFE's and then an internal RFE committee

         11  at the Commission, which consists of me, many of the

         12  people at this table, the Executive Director,

         13  Director of Research and the counsel.  Then, we sit

         14  down from time to time, as I said, I meet with the

         15  Research Department every week or ten days, so I'm

         16  constantly -- and then some days we have, let's say

         17  we have a Manhattan day, then we'll do Staten Island

         18  and various subsets within those districts.  We look

         19  at what's coming up and what people are asking for,

         20  and to see if the building or the historic district

         21  should move forward at that stage, make the first

         22  cut, if you will, based on their analysis, their

         23  expertise, bring it to my attention with a broader

         24  group, and then we decide what happens next.

         25                 Then, if it -- and then, they, and
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          2  then, if it passes that threshold, if you will,

          3  then, okay, this is significant enough so that we're

          4  not going to write a letter back and say, okay

          5  there's no interest here.  It's a request that

          6  really, no matter what we were to do and how many

          7  people we were to show it to and how, it will never

          8  go any further, then we, some of those are disposed

          9  of that way, others aren't.

         10                 Those that aren't, the Director of

         11  Research, Mary Beth, then will e- mail out to the

         12  Commissioners, some Commissioners, sometimes all of

         13  them, I, it depends, some of the pictures that

         14  accompany these requests, and a statement of

         15  significance about that building.  Commissioners

         16  then respond immediately by e- mail or through

         17  personal conversations and it's a constant on- going

         18  process, so, here, what do you think of these three

         19  items, you know, or I just saw this on my e- mail

         20  and I think it's interesting, so I think maybe we

         21  should move it forward.

         22                 So, I gauge their responses based on

         23  that information, what we sent to them, and I decide

         24  whether or not to bring it to a public meeting to be

         25  calendared, based on all that information.  And,
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          2  it's not just out there,  I'm also talking to people

          3  all the time and taking in as much as I can in the

          4  public arena, whether it's critiques on architecture

          5  or whether it's, many of the people in this room

          6  that I talk to all the time and getting input.

          7  Then, we make that, and then it's my judgment,

          8  basically, whether to, at that point, as the, in my

          9  discretion as the Chairman of the Commission, to

         10  decide what goes on our agenda.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  Mr.

         12  Chairman, I appreciate that answer.  I know it was

         13  long.  I know that this is an on- going topic.  You

         14  know, it just seems to me that perhaps, again, this

         15  process could be either more transparent or thought

         16  about differently.  It's obviously created not just

         17  for a few buildings, I assume that as, you know,

         18  life goes on, there will be other such instances --

         19                 MR. TIERNEY:  Sure.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  -- And the

         21  question is, how do you have as transparent a

         22  process that you have for the, once the decision has

         23  been made to do it, that could also be part of the

         24  process up to that point?

         25                 MR. TIERNEY:  We'd be glad to think
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          2  about it and if there are suggestions made here

          3  today, I would certainly listen to them, because,

          4  but because of the volume of what I've described to

          5  you, of the 200 odd requests that come in and the

          6  way we process them, I don't think, we certainly

          7  couldn't go to the quote unquote the full public

          8  hearing.  But, there may be intermediate steps, I'd

          9  be glad to listen to anybody's suggestions on that,

         10  we're --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right, for

         12  now, thank you Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay,

         14  Councilman.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Later maybe

         16  ask a question or make a comment, I would vote aye.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay, Councilman

         18   --

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  The vote --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I'm sorry.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  The vote

         22  stands at seven in the affirmative, none in the

         23  negative and no abstentions, and is referred to the

         24  full Land Use Committee.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  If there's
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          2  anyone that wants to speak, I don't know what we're

          3  going to do, but if you have any intentions of

          4  speaking, you should make sure to ask the Sergeant

          5  at Arms for one of these slips to fill it out, so

          6  that we have that information.  Hold on a minute,

          7  out of order. You're not a Member of the Committee

          8  and if you still need more attention, we'll have you

          9  removed.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  As a Member of

         11  this body, I want to make clear that this Hearing is

         12  being conducted in a place that had not allow the

         13  amount of people who had responded for this Hearing,

         14  and the bottom floor was filled up with people when

         15  I was coming up.  I saw at least 100 people there

         16  waiting. We have a problem in term of the facility

         17  not allowing people to be here in a way that make

         18  this hearing fair and square.  I think that that

         19  should be noticed in the minutes of this meeting.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Councilman

         21  Perkins.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBERS PERKINS:  Thank you

         23  Mr. Chairman. I'm not going to ask a question at

         24  this time.  I'm going to make a statement with the

         25  condition that after we start hearing from the
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          2  public, that I be given an opportunity to ask a

          3  question --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Sure.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  -- At least

          6  of the public, but I did want to first thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman, for the fact that we're having the

          8  Hearing.  It's unfortunate that we have had such a

          9  wonderfully overwhelming turnout, that we have not

         10  been able to accommodate folks as we should and as

         11  we might normally be able to.  I know that the room

         12  behind us is full and that they're bringing people

         13  up to take, to sit in on the 14th floor, just as a

         14  way to accommodate them temporarily.

         15                 But, I wanted, there are a few

         16  concerns I wanted to just present, but I don't want

         17  you to respond necessarily at this point in time.

         18  What I want, you know, Harlem is a community like

         19  many other communities in our City that's going

         20  through a lot of changes, a lot of transition and a

         21  lot of development.  In that regard there's a

         22  concern as to whether or not Landmarks is a part of

         23  that in terms of surveying, cataloguing, protecting

         24  the potential precious landmarkable properties.  In

         25  fact, there's a concern that maybe the whole
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          2  district is a historic district and whether or not

          3  Landmarks has the capacity and the willingness to

          4  look at these types of communities, not just the

          5  Harlem, but, you know, this is happening in other

          6  parts of Manhattan and other parts of the City, but

          7  I'm particularly mentioning Harlem, obviously.  But,

          8  to wonder why, if, why we're not doing it, and if

          9  we, and how do we go about doing that so that

         10  there's not just a wholesale bulldozing of important

         11  pieces of property, whether they be St. Thomas

         12  Church or whatever the places may be.

         13                 Of course, I want to understand this

         14  budgetary, because you have here an extraordinary

         15  constituency, that, we probably only tipped the

         16  iceberg of which, and it seems to me that what

         17  you're hearing, what we're seeing is a great demand

         18  for the work that your Commission is mandated to do,

         19  and I'm wondering whether or not that demand can be

         20  filled with the kind of budget that you are, that

         21  you're working with and how do we go about making

         22  sure that the proper budget and the proper processes

         23  are put in order.  But, with that in mind, I just

         24  wanted to say to the Chairman that I hope when we,

         25  when folks are finished talking, I get a chance to
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          2  ask a question of the folks that are here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes, absolutely.

          4  Council Member Lopez.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Thank you Mr.

          6  Chair.  I only have one comment and two questions.

          7  First, Commissioner, and to all of us, obviously

          8  it's a problem, the amount of people that are here

          9  are telling of that, and are telling us that we have

         10  an issue that is not about landmarking.  It's about

         11  the functioning of the way in which we are

         12  proceeding with landmarking, and it's very important

         13  that all of us listen to what they are saying in

         14  silent.  I'm listening, I hope that you are

         15  listening.

         16                 MR. TIERNEY:  I am.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Saying that,

         18  the first question that I have is in regard of the

         19  following:  When I came in to be a Council Member,

         20  it was in 1998.  At the time that I came, it was a

         21  proposal to landmark 7th Street, a portion of it,

         22  and a series of buildings in the area of Gramercy

         23  Park that should have been landmarked long before I

         24  got to be Council Member.  By the time that I got

         25  there, I met with the people of the community and
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          2  they indicated to me that they confronting serious

          3  problems in able to move this forward.

          4                 I must tell you, very sadly, that

          5  that have not changed since 1998.  I see the

          6  procedure being a long stretch procedure where we

          7  need to preserve our history.  I want to know what

          8  you have implemented to make this procedure faster,

          9  better and to make sure that we don't lost

         10  properties in the process?

         11                 MR. TIERNEY:  We're adding, this is

         12  East Seventh Street, you say?  East --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  17th Street.

         14                 MR. TIERNEY:  17th, excuse me, excuse

         15  me.  Fine.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  You were not

         17   --

         18                 MR. TIERNEY:  No, no, I --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- In place at

         20  the time.

         21                 MR. TIERNEY:  Okay.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And you cite

         23  that as an example to you for what I --

         24                 MR. TIERNEY:  I understand.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- I inherit.
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          2  Go without telling you that when I became

          3  Councilwoman, it was landmark then.

          4                 MR. TIERNEY:  I can understand that,

          5  so give me some more, really.  No, but, and I, you

          6  ask a very serious question, we should be -- I'm

          7  desperate to do more.  We're trying to do as much as

          8  we can.  I can't single, the Commission cannot

          9  single-handedly protect the City against the kinds

         10  of things you're talking about.  However, we can do

         11  a lot, and it's our responsibility to do so.  We're

         12  trying, we're doing the incremental and more than

         13  incremental improvements in our budget and our

         14  staff, Mary Beth Betts and our Research Department,

         15  which is the department that really shepherds the

         16  things you're talking about --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  How many

         18  people --

         19                 MR. TIERNEY:  -- And it has grown.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- Are in that

         21  department?

         22                 MR. TIERNEY:  We now have six, five

         23  people.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Six, five

         25  people for how many cases?
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          2                 MR. TIERNEY:  Well, as I said, we

          3  have 12 designations a year of individual landmarks

          4  and four historic districts --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I'm talking

          6  about applications at this point.

          7                 MR. TIERNEY:  -- And we have 200

          8  applications a year.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then, six

         10  people for 200 applications currently in the place.

         11  Do you think that the amount of staff that you have

         12  to investigate and to conduct entire necessarily

         13  historical fact finding and everything else that you

         14  need to have in there, do you think that six people

         15  is enough?  And, if you think that, why, and if you

         16  don't think that, why you have not requested more

         17  money from the Council --

         18                 MR. TIERNEY:  We have requested.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- To hire

         20  more people?

         21                 MR. TIERNEY:  We have requested,

         22  we've, and that's, let me rephrase that, we have

         23  gotten more money from the Council based on a

         24  request by the Mayor's Office during the last budget

         25  cycle.  Maybe not enough, we can, one can always say
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          2  we need more, everyone needs more.  But, we believe

          3  this is a significant step in the right direction.

          4                 We're beginning to address those,

          5  that issue of volume, and, but I believe there's

          6  also an issue of supervision and quality control,

          7  where if we were to double the size of Mary Beth's

          8  office, unless I'm certain that her expertise and

          9  the expertise of another person or so are the final

         10  filter for these kinds of judgments, I'm not sure

         11  that, that that's a productive use of a lot more

         12  people.  So, I don't want --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I'm sorry,

         14  sir, you just said something right now, right here

         15   --

         16                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yea.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- That is

         18  really unacceptable.  What you're telling me is that

         19  there's only two people in the whole world --

         20                 MR. TIERNEY:  No, I didn't.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- Who can

         22  make decisions like this, then are you telling me --

         23                 MR. TIERNEY:  I didn't say that --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- That we

         25  cannot bring more personnel with intelligence and
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          2  the capacity --

          3                 MR. TIERNEY:  I didn't say that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- To do this

          5  beside the two of you?

          6                 MR. TIERNEY:  I think the way it's, I

          7  think, I think the way the system works now in terms

          8  of the volume of requests and the number of people

          9  in our department, and is able to address the

         10  important problems that come our way.  Could we --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  If that be the

         12  case, you would not have 200 applications pending,

         13  if that be the case.

         14                 MR. TIERNEY:  Not necessarily.  Of

         15  the 200, and I don't what to characterize them, many

         16  of them are without merit and we take  --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And if they

         18  are without merit, you would be able to get rid of

         19  them, because if you have enough people doing it --

         20                 MR. TIERNEY:  Okay.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- It would be

         22  out and then you would have the good ones in place.

         23                 MR. TIERNEY:  Okay, I'm not going to

         24  argue that, and nor, you're not arguing, but I don't

         25  want to debate whether we could profitably use more
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          2  resources.  I think every City agency --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  But, the

          4  bottom line, my intervention with you in this item

          5   --

          6                 MR. TIERNEY:  Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- Is that I

          8  have met with land preservation people over the

          9  years, and over and over again the complaints are,

         10  the complaint is the same one, that the items of

         11  landmarking always play a second role to other

         12  interests besides us preserving our history.

         13  Interests like politics, interests like economics,

         14  interests like pretending that this issue is not

         15  important, and it's more important, many, many, many

         16  times than anything else --

         17                 MR. TIERNEY:  Absolutely.  I couldn't

         18  agree --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- Then I'm

         20  inviting you right now --

         21                 MR. TIERNEY:  -- I couldn't agree

         22  with you more.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then, I'm

         24  inviting you right now to look at what we see here

         25  and what we see outside, and these people are

                                                            74

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  speaking loud.  They saying that the Land (sic)

          3  Preservation Commission have a problem and we have a

          4  problem, not only in there, but we have a problem

          5  also in our side in the City Council, and we need to

          6  address it, to come to terms with this because it's

          7  not, we're going to lose precious, precious landmark

          8  places that we should not lose, and shame on us if

          9  we do.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Council Member

         11  Quinn.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I actually

         13  wanted to check on the Gansevoort Rules, so, that

         14  was taken care of, thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you, and

         16  Councilman Koppell.  I just want to make one point

         17  that the Hearing started late, unfortunately, and

         18  it's been about an hour and a quarter since we

         19  started and we haven't heard at all from the public,

         20  and that's my fault, as well as some other people,

         21  I'll say.  So, I'm just asking for my colleagues and

         22  myself, unless it's really important, to try to make

         23  the questions short, so that we could get some

         24  people up to testify.

         25                 Have that man ejected, now.  Don't
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          2  tell me, if, oh is that so?  You can't run a hearing

          3  with somebody screaming out all the time.  Let him,

          4  give him one more chance.  Excuse me? One more

          5  chance, but that's about it.  This is not a bizarre.

          6  Their in yours Gale, so try to talk to them, or to

          7  him, I should say.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Mister,

          9  Chairman of the Landmark Commission, first of all, I

         10  want to thank you for your cooperation.  You've

         11  always been extraordinarily responsive and

         12  cooperative.  I want to say that in listening to

         13  your answer to my colleague, Councilperson Brewer,

         14  it occurred to me and seeing the large number of

         15  people here, and you're asking for suggestions and

         16  we can talk about this further in private.  But, I

         17  would suggest that perhaps, given the issue of

         18  whether something should be given full dress

         19  attention by the Commission, perhaps, once a year,

         20  the Commissioners themselves should hold a hearing

         21  on hearings, and allow people to come forward and

         22  make their case.

         23                 It might be a long hearing, it's

         24  true, but it would say to people that there's an

         25  open, and as you called it, transparent process,
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          2  with the Commissioners themselves there, where

          3  people can put their requests before the Commission.

          4    You could have a very short window.  I've had

          5  hearings, I've done hearings for 30 years.  I've had

          6  hearings where I said two minutes for everybody, and

          7  you can hear an awful lot of people that way.  But,

          8  a hearing on what should be considered, an open

          9  hearing on what should be considered, which is a

         10  little more transparent than the process you

         11  described.  I would recommend.

         12                 MR. TIERNEY:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.  Can

         14  you please do me a favor, don't clap.  Don't clap

         15  for me, don't clap for anybody.  When I go out, this

         16  is not, this is not a movie, it's not a show.  This

         17  is very serious and it's serious enough for so many

         18  of you to have turned out, so let's keep it that

         19  way.  One, two, I want to make something clear that

         20  there's no one on the Council, I'm not, I'm speaking

         21  for my colleagues, I'm taking that liberty, and if

         22  any of them feel differently, you can say so. None

         23  of my colleagues, neither the land use staff or any

         24  one in the City Council would have thought that so

         25  many people would have been interested in the
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          2  Oversight Hearing.  If we -- excuse me, excuse me.

          3                 The Oversight Hearing with the

          4  parameters that we have set that are limited to the

          5  administrative portions.  I'm not talking about Two

          6  Columbus Circle.  I'm not talking about other

          7  addresses, and when the e- mails went out all over

          8  the place about what this Hearing is going to be

          9  about, which it's not, that is exactly why we have

         10  so many, which is a good thing, but there was no way

         11  for us to be able to get the space changed in time.

         12                 The choice we had today was to cancel

         13  the Hearing, we had no alternative space, or to

         14  start the Hearing, try to be able to take as much

         15  testimony as we can from those of you that were,

         16  could get into the smaller facility, that certainly

         17  is not large enough.  Then, at some future date, we

         18  will have Rocky II, we will have another Hearing

         19  here, and if you wish to come and testify, those of

         20  you that want to will be able to come and we'll do

         21  this again.  There was no good solution to a problem

         22  that came about without, whether you believe it or

         23  not, without anyone anticipating what would take

         24  place today.  Okay, I understand, I see this head

         25  shaking like this, what a bunch of bull, what of
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          2  this, what of that, you can say whatever you want,

          3  but that's the truth.  That is exactly the truth.

          4                 So, that's what we intend to do.

          5  This Hearing is going to continue til 5:30.  We're

          6  going to take as much testimony from people who are

          7  here, in a random order, no particular order, then

          8  we're going to try to take it in a random order.  I

          9  think there are one or two people who came in from

         10  out of town, we'll make an exception to that, but

         11  other than that, that's all we're going to do.

         12  We're going to save your sign- in sheets, and we're

         13  going to try to notify you, personally, that's, I'm

         14  making a request for anybody that came tonight, if

         15  you, the problem is, some of you signed in without

         16  an address of any sort. So, if you want, we will

         17  have Sergeant at Arms --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Mr. Chairman?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yea.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Does

         21  notification has to be by certified mail?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yea, yea, yes,

         23  and Landmarks will do it.  But if the Sergeant at

         24  Arms, if any of you want to be notified, other than

         25  the fact that it's on the website, on your way out,

                                                            79

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  I will ask the Sergeant at Arms to have a list, put

          3  your name down or, and your phone number, so that we

          4  can inform you, individually, about when the next

          5  time we will have a Hearing.  I apologize for the

          6  fact that this is the way it worked out.  So, I want

          7  to thank the Commissioners, appreciate your coming,

          8  and we would, if, we would appreciate, if possible,

          9  for you to at least, either you or some of your

         10  staff members --

         11                 MR. TIERNEY:  Someone --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  -- To stand

         13  around.

         14                 MR. TIERNEY:  -- Someone will be

         15  here.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  And, for, I'm

         17  sorry? And also, for the next Hearing, if we can

         18  have somebody from your staff present as well.

         19  Thank you very much.

         20                 MR. TIERNEY:  And thank you for your

         21  courtesy, every Member, Chairman, and every Member

         22  of the Council.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I don't think

         24  she can hear, if you can, do you need help?  If not,

         25  I'll help her out, okay. Michelle Adams.  Okay,
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          2  sure, Michelle Adams -- there are two, I know

          3  Michael and I know Michelle, believe me.   Michelle

          4  Adams, yea, okay.  Who are the out-of-towners?

          5  Michael Adams please, Steve McQuillin, is there, is

          6  a Steve McQuillin here?  Over there, please, can you

          7  hurry up?  Are you Steve McQuillin? Sit down please.

          8    Who else is from out of town?  William Young, is

          9  there a William Young here?  Who's here from

         10  Philadelphia?  Who wants to make believe you're here

         11  from Philadelphia?  That's, oh I see, okay.  Ronnie

         12  Eldridge, I announced her, she's not here. If you

         13  can please have a seat.  Michelle Adams, not here.

         14  This was, who's this, Jonathan Farnham.  Is there a

         15  Jonathan Farnham from Philadelphia?  Okay, next,

         16  Carolyn Kent.  Is there a Carolyn Kent here?  If you

         17  could have a seat.  We have one more seat --

         18                 MR. IRVING:  Clarence Irving, from,

         19  who's come a long distance.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  From where?

         21                 MR. IRVING:  From Long Island.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Be with you in a

         23  minute. Robin Williams, sit down.  That's random.

         24  All right, whatever I said to you before, there's

         25  one more seat over here, Ms. Williams, it's right
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          2  over there.  What I  -- I don't think I've called

          3  anybody  -- I just want to again mention the rules.

          4  Please say whatever you have to say, but if you,

          5  just repeating what somebody else testified, you can

          6  just say you agree or disagree with what they said.

          7  You have two minutes.  Sergeant at Arms, the clock

          8  please.  Since everybody knows, beauty before age, I

          9  will allow you to testify first.

         10                 DR. NORMAN:  That's not, my name is

         11  not Judy.  Oh, is that, oh my goodness, excuse me.

         12  Yes, my name is Dr. Winifred Latimer Norman.  My

         13  grandfather, Lewis Latimer, was an inventor of the

         14  incandescent light and drawings for bale and so

         15  forth, so that when we, when Latimer House was

         16  formed, we decided to name it after Lewis Latimer

         17  and when we started to work at the Latimer Fund, we

         18  decided it would be most important that we be

         19  landmarked.

         20                 We were very fortunate and very happy

         21  that we have been landmarked for some time.  But, it

         22  is also important that people know how this

         23  happened, and that people like yourselves who are at

         24  the Hearing, had many hearings and pressed for

         25  recognition of Latimer House and Lewis Latimer and
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          2  what he had done.  I am here, I only have two

          3  minutes, I'm not going to say very much, except to

          4  say that there were obstacles at the Latimer,

          5  Commission found were there, and were wondering

          6  whether we would be able to have it landmarked,

          7  because we had many hearings and many people

          8  present.

          9                 The obstacles were removed, that is,

         10  the idea of the, for example, on the house itself,

         11  that the kind of covering that they had was not sort

         12  of in the landmark area, but we, was accepted.

         13  Also, we had to, to save the house, we have to move

         14  it some distance, and that also was a problem, which

         15  the Landmark Commission, thankfully to us, was able

         16  to accept.  So that now, the Latimer House is in

         17  Flushing, in case many of you don't know where it

         18  is.  It is about a mile and a half from public, from

         19  the subway, and we are hoping that we will be able

         20  to continue to keep the house as a landmarked house,

         21  and that more and more people will be able to come

         22  and see it.

         23                 We recently were able to hire an

         24  executive director.  All this time we've been doing

         25  it as volunteers, and it's been a problem.  But, we
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          2  have an executive director whose going to be making

          3  it possible for you to hear more about it, for you

          4  to come and visit it and we are very happy that we

          5  were asked, and I'm very pleased that I was asked to

          6  speak first and very surprised.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          8  much for coming and if you come to our second

          9  Hearing, we will allow you to speak first again.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:    Let's go in

         11  the order that you called.  We have some

         12  out-of-towners, have the out-of-towners  -- oh

         13  please, thank you, thank you Mr. Chairman, don't

         14  charm me.  Go on.

         15                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, and Members

         16  of the Subcommittee, my name is William Young, I,

         17  oh, I'm sorry, it was a minute ago.  Thank you, we

         18  don't have microphones in Boston. I'm delighted to

         19  speak of our experiences in Boston with the

         20  Administration of Historic and Architectural

         21  Districts, as well as our interactions with

         22  individuals in community groups engaged in a review

         23  process that we believe to be important in principal

         24  and transparent, open, and above all, public in its

         25  practice.
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          2                 As Councilman Oddo has noted, we are,

          3  as New Yorkers and Bostonians, standing across a

          4  gulf of religious difference, known as Major League

          5  Baseball, but nonetheless, here we are.

          6                 In Boston, we have a great many

          7  historic resources.  We have, in fact, as many as

          8  7,600, approximately. Eight of these, of which,

          9  eight exist within locally designated historic

         10  districts, all professionally staffed and managed by

         11  Commissioners who are publicly appointed by the

         12  Mayor from various constituencies.  We have a very

         13  small staff of five.  We envy your resources here in

         14  New York, and I have been glad to prepare a packet

         15  describing our efforts in, in Boston, that cover

         16  what we do with our limited resources.  We're very

         17  pleased to learn of your efforts here and if I can

         18  be of any further information, I invite you to let

         19  us know.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  We appreciate

         21  your coming despite Councilman Oddo's comments.  He

         22  will be censured.

         23                 MR.  MCQUILLIN:  Good afternoon, my

         24  name is Steve McQuillin, I'm a preservationist from

         25  Cleveland, Ohio.  We drove in early this morning,

                                                            85

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  and I'm not going to speak in favor of Two Columbus

          3  Circle, but confine my comments to suggestions from

          4  Cleveland, although we really think that, I mean,

          5  New York has been the leader in preservation.  Our

          6  commissions date from 1971 and we have 16 historic

          7  districts.  I've been Chairman for 20 years of the

          8  Brooklyn Center Design Review Committee  In fact, we

          9  just had a contentious meeting yesterday.  But, what

         10  we do in Cleveland, we only have three staff

         11  members, so we do rely on volunteers.

         12                 The Design Review Committees are

         13  empowered to decide certain cases that are not real

         14  major issues, alterations, anything short of a

         15  demolition, so they don't have to go before the full

         16  commission, that saves times.  We rely on these

         17  volunteers to build that partnership in the

         18  neighborhoods to let people know about it and help

         19  resolve these situations.  So, I think that works

         20  out very well.

         21                 Also, the City of Cleveland has

         22  enacted demolition moratoriums in the downtown and

         23  in different areas, and, that prevent demolitions

         24  while landmarks are being sorted out, and that is a

         25  process, I think, could work well.  Even in the
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          2  suburban community of Avon, they have had a

          3  demolition moratorium while they sort through this

          4  whole question of what to designate. I think those

          5  are very important issues.

          6                 Then, finally, I would just like to

          7  say is, during the course of considering landmarks

          8  and other buildings, if they could consider trying

          9  to dovetail with Federal programs.  I am always

         10  preaching that the rehabilitation tax credit, at 20

         11  percent subsidy, on the cost of rehabilitating

         12  historic buildings can be a wonderful incentive to

         13  get people to do a more sensitive rehabilitation,

         14  because the Landmarks Commission can just say, you

         15  can't do this, you can't do that, but we're not

         16  going to give you anything.  Here's a case where if

         17  they'd work with these groups, that they could offer

         18  positive incentive to people. Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  And again, we

         20  really appreciate you're coming here despite

         21  Councilman Oddo's comments to your colleague there,

         22  all right?

         23                 MR. MCQUILLIN:  Thank you.

         24                 MR. FARNHAM:  Good afternoon.  My

         25  name is John Farnham.  I am the Acting Historic
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          2  Preservation Officer in the City of Philadelphia

          3  and, therefore, the Director of the staff of the

          4  Philadelphia Historical Commission.

          5                 The Philadelphia Historical

          6  Commission was founded in 1955, I believe one of the

          7  country's oldest, but not the oldest, it has

          8  approximately 12,000 sites and properties under its

          9  jurisdiction.  The Commission is made up of 14

         10  members, eight appointed by the Mayor, and six ex

         11  officio.  I apologize, I've been, for the last hour

         12  and a half or so, in the cafeteria, and I have not

         13  heard the discussion and I may be off point here.

         14  But, I did want to comment on the, Philadelphia's

         15  commitment to openness in the designation process.

         16                 Anyone may submit a nomination for

         17  designation of a site as historic in Philadelphia.

         18  You need not be the owner of the property.  You need

         19  not be a Philadelphian, anyone.  The Philadelphia

         20  Historical Commission is committed to reviewing all

         21  nominations, regardless of their correctness or

         22  completeness, in public hearings, with its Committee

         23  on Historic Designation and at the Commission level.

         24                 I have with me, copies of the

         25  Commission's Ordinance 14- 2007 of the Philadelphia
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          2  Code, as well as the Commission's Rules and

          3  Regulations, which operate basically as law, and I

          4  would like to leave you with those, and I would be

          5  happy to answer any questions you might have about

          6  our designation process.

          7                 MS. ELDRIDGE:  I'm Ronnie Eldridge

          8  and I'm a former Council Member and I apologize to

          9  everybody who was here before me.  But, I've been

         10  extended, I guess, a form of professional courtesy,

         11  I'm not sure, thank you Mr. Chair.

         12                 I think, as you can tell, this, as

         13  been stated, the community that supports landmarking

         14  in this City is enormous. It's vital.  It's

         15  intelligent, it's a, a lot of them are land owners

         16  and that's why I think we've paid the attention that

         17  we've paid so far to landmarking.  But, I hope that

         18  you will listen to everybody, because we think the

         19  Landmark Commission needs to have more money, it has

         20  to have a larger staff, it has to be able, really,

         21  to save and to do the kinds of things we, we need

         22  and we want to make this, keep this City this

         23  special city.

         24                 But, more importantly, it also has to

         25  be able hear from the citizens more, and I think
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          2  that's the crux of, of our problem.  I know you've

          3  got very serious guidelines as to what we can

          4  discuss today.  The fact is, people are here today

          5  because of the procedure about what issues get

          6  hearings, in order to be landmarked, and that is a

          7  very important procedure, and I, as far, and I

          8  listened to the Commissioner and I don't think it

          9  was answered satisfactorily.

         10                 Everything has political overtones or

         11  undertones or political impacts.  We cannot deny

         12  that about the City of New York and its government.

         13  We know that a Commission doesn't operate by itself.

         14    It has, it's part of an Administration and

         15  political interests have to be part of it.  I want

         16  you to understand, Mr. Chair and the Members of this

         17  Committee, this is a long history, especially about

         18  one site, about the disposition of the property at

         19  Columbus Circle, and because the City avoided your

         20  proceedings when it disposed of the property, and

         21  because they've refused to have a public hearing on

         22  whether or not this should be a landmark, it has

         23  built up an incredible amount of frustration and

         24  anger at the City Government, which is unnecessary.

         25  Therefore, that's why you have such an outpouring,
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          2  because we want the process to really be open.

          3                 We, I gather, transparency is the

          4  word of the year 2000.  I spent 12 years here and I

          5  never heard the word transparency used, but we want

          6  open processes and, unfortunately, as we go along,

          7  the electric gets more sophisticated and there is

          8  not a more sophisticated constituency in the City

          9  than the landmarking constituency and I will hope, I

         10  hope that you will hear them today and that you will

         11  respond to it accordingly. Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         13  much.  I just want to reiterate --

         14                 MS. ELDRIDGE:  It did not, I'm

         15  talking about administrative things.  You cannot

         16  isolate this Landmarks Commission from the operation

         17  of the government.  You just can't do it, and if you

         18  try to, then you're hiding more than we think you

         19  should be hiding.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay.

         21                 MS. ELDRIDGE:   Maybe something that

         22  shouldn't even be hidden, but it leads people to

         23  think there is something behind it.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay, who's

         25  next?
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          2                 MS. KENT:  Well, right on cue, here I

          3  am to talk about administrative functioning and want

          4  to bring here two recent instances where Board Nine

          5  was, was stymied in its ability to serve the

          6  community in the wider city, as we are able and

          7  wanting to do.  Because of exactly what the, what

          8  Chair Tierney referred to when he said 95 percent of

          9  our certificate of appropriateness or, or in the

         10  case of City- owned properties, our report, our

         11  advisory report, on the correctness of the repairs

         12  or the changes that are, that are suggested, that 95

         13  percent are handled at staff level.

         14                 Community Boards Nine has had the,

         15  this administrative stymieing in just the last year

         16  of two very important cases, where in the case of

         17  the MTAs landmarked subway stations at 116th and

         18  110th Street, an elaborate and very, very

         19  dysfunctional art scheme was cooked up and given

         20  staff approval without any knowledge whatsoever by

         21  the Community Board, as was a very, a very

         22  troublesome, tall, ugly fence that was drilled into

         23  100 year- old landmarked granite wall, installed in

         24  a very important Watergate building of the Croton

         25  system without our knowledge that this was even
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          2  being contemplated.

          3                 Charges of vandalism had been made in

          4  the case of the Croton, which we could have answered

          5  and would have liked to answer.  But, I rush to say

          6  what the bottom line here, which was our Chair wrote

          7  a firm letter to the Commission about the need for

          8  us to know about what is being contemplated, so that

          9  we can give our expert report on that and we were

         10  told in the responding letter, we do 7,000 staff

         11  level approvals a year.  We are not changing that.

         12  We do not inform community boards of staff level

         13  approval, and we have not intention of doing that

         14  now.

         15                 So, let's hope that this Hearing will

         16  open questions like this, which have been addressed

         17  by the individual board and really help the Chair

         18  understand that these have got to be worked through

         19  and not just simply letters sending back and forth,

         20  closing the door on the kind of community

         21  contribution that we all know that the community

         22  boards who are half- staffed by your nominations,

         23  sirs and ladies, can and should add to the City.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 MR. ADAMS:  Good afternoon ladies and
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          2  gentlemen, Council Members, this is an historic

          3  occasion, because it's only the second Oversight

          4  Hearing of the Landmarks Preservation Commission by

          5  the City Council in its 40- year history.  In

          6  Washington, DC, by distinction, each year, they have

          7  both an administrative oversight hearing and an

          8  economic, a budgetary oversight hearing of their

          9  Landmarks Preservation Commission. When Council

         10  Member Perkins asked me to reach out and to invite

         11  people from the landmarks preservation staffs of

         12  other jurisdictions, I did so with the idea of

         13  trying to help to inform the Council of how these

         14  jurisdiction, how some of these other jurisdictions

         15  and Washington and Philadelphia and Boston, how they

         16  differed from our Commission in a positive way, but

         17  one, but ones which could easily be adapted without

         18  even amending the law, but simply by changing rules.

         19                 So, that one thing that each of these

         20  commissions has in common is that at every single

         21  one of these jurisdictions, when a meeting is held

         22  to determine whether or not a building will be

         23  considered to be a landmark or a district will be

         24  considered to be an historic district, it is held in

         25  public.
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          2                 In order for those buildings to be

          3  nominated and considered, that too is a guaranteed

          4  public process, whereby in Boston, for instance, any

          5  city council member, the mayor or any ten registered

          6  voters may nominate a building to be a landmark, and

          7  within 30 days it's mandated that a hearing be held

          8  to deliberate over that building.

          9                 So, why, over the years, over 40

         10  years, we've had these secret meetings to determine

         11  what we consider for landmarking.  It's not written

         12  into our law.  It needn't to be done this way, and

         13  to change it would create so much greater confidence

         14  than the public process amongst the public, because

         15  it is, after all, the public who are to be served

         16  here.

         17                 Unfortunately, the public, over and

         18  over again, is made to feel that they are pushed out

         19  and kept out and that the whole landmarking process

         20  is an elitest, is an elitest one, which is not meant

         21  to encourage participation, but is meant to block

         22  people out and this is an unfortunate thing, which I

         23  hope that this Hearing and others will go to

         24  address.

         25                 In addition, I just would like to say
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          2  to you, Chairman Felder, it's rather disappointing

          3  to me, much like when Mr. Cheney admitted that he

          4  didn't know anything about the high propensity of

          5  African American woman who were subject to AIDS,

          6  that you didn't know from all your experience and

          7  the hearings we've been in together, with all the

          8  great interest that people have expressed and the

          9  problems with the Landmarks Commission, that having

         10  a Hearing about the Landmarks Commission, since

         11  there's only been one before, that you would have a

         12  great outpouring of the populous of New York, who,

         13  rich, poor, black, white, all over the City, people

         14  are interested in this issue and are interested in

         15  getting our buildings protected.

         16                 Because it's not just a matter of Two

         17  Columbus Circle or St. Thomas the Apostle Church,

         18  buildings all over this City are in danger of being

         19  destroyed because of the inaction of that Commission

         20  and because of their not doing their job, and that

         21  is why to hear Mr. Tierney talk about a notion of

         22  openness and fairness, it is the greatest hypocrisy

         23  on --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I ask you to

         25  conclude.
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          2                 MR. ADAMS:  -- On, in the world, when

          3  you talked in that way.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I'm going to

          5  have to ask you to conclude.  I let you, first of

          6  all, I have great respect for you, and that's why

          7  even though it was over the two minute time, when

          8  you started attacking me, in a subtle way, I wanted

          9  to hear it, because I, whether I agree or not, I

         10  respect you greatly, and I want to thank you for

         11  having invited some of the distinguished members

         12  from other places.  But, I'm not going to debate

         13  this with you here.  Either you believe me or you

         14  don't believe me.

         15                 The analogy, I take exception to,

         16  with, I think that was bizarre, but that's okay.  I

         17  mean, I've been called funnier things before, but I,

         18  if, I don't get that.  But, that's okay, I'll think

         19  about it, there must be something in it.  I think

         20  there is one other, one other member of the panel --

         21  maybe it's my being bald that reminded you of Dick

         22  Cheney --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Mr. Chair, can

         24  I just say, I think you're being very kind.  I just

         25  want to say, I, too, have great respect for the
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          2  speaker, but I think I speak for all of my

          3  colleagues here, to compare you not getting a large

          4  enough room to the Vice- President not knowing the

          5  impact AIDS is having on women of color in this

          6  country who are actually dying as a result, I find

          7  offensive, on so many levels.  I'm sure Mr. Adams

          8  did not mean to make such an offensive comment.

          9  But, I feel, for the record, that I need to respond

         10   --

         11                 MR. ADAMS:  Council Member Quinn, I

         12  would like to apologize to you and to the rest of

         13  the people if I've offended anyone, but my point was

         14  merely that it seems so --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I just, I

         16  just, I wanted to make a statement, I didn't really

         17  want a response.  I just wanted to say for the

         18  record --

         19                 MR. ADAMS:  However, I feel compelled

         20   --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  -- That I was

         22  offended.

         23                 MR. ADAMS:  -- To give a response for

         24  having made this.  I've apologized --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Excuse me.
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          2                 MR. ADAMS:  -- And my point was

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Excuse me.

          4                 MR. ADAMS:  -- Since --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Excuse me.  I

          6  will take the next speaker please.  We are not going

          7  to turn --

          8                 MR. ADAMS:  My point, simply, is that

          9  it seems so unlikely to me --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Excuse me

         11  please.

         12                 MR. ADAMS:  -- That you wouldn't have

         13  known that people would not turn out --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay.

         15                 MR. ADAMS:  -- Given this issue.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Are you

         17  finished?  Good. Now, next speaker.

         18                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Hi.  My name is Robin

         19  Williams. I'm a parishioner of St. Thomas The

         20  Apostle, and I've been fighting to save it for over

         21  a year now.  St. Thomas meets all the criteria for

         22  landmark status, but has not been, but has been

         23  denied the opportunity.  However, the Archdiocese

         24  has given thumbs up to two other Harlem churches

         25  that are seeking landmark status.
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          2                 St. Thomas is a work of art, inside,

          3  as well as outside, with a rich history.  Just as

          4  the destruction of Penn Station was an act of

          5  municipal vandalism, the destruction of St. Thomas

          6  is an act of eccliastic (sic) vandalism, and it must

          7  be stopped. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Very much.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes, I was

         10  just, let me just preface my question by saying that

         11  I expect someone wearing a Kerry Edwards comment to

         12  take a shot at Dick Cheney.  I didn't expect someone

         13  wearing a Kerry Edwards button to say such an

         14  insensitive comment, even the republicans in the

         15  City Council don't make stupid comments like that.

         16                 With respect to the gentleman from

         17  Cleveland, you mention -- hiss all you want folks,

         18  hiss all you want, I'm used to it.  The question

         19  from the gentleman from Cleveland, you mention the

         20  notion of, that you enacted a moratorium.  Did you

         21  enact it via a local law?  Did you enact it via land

         22  use application?  Did you enact it via an executive

         23  order?  How did you achieve the moratorium on

         24  demolition?  An actual local law?

         25                 MR. MCQUILLIN:  Sorry, it was through
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          2  legislation by city council.  It was enacted for a

          3  specific period of time in those areas, in the

          4  downtown area.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  May I ask if,

          6  to trouble you, if you could forward a copy of that

          7  bill to the Chairman and to me, personally, because

          8  we've wanted to pursue moratorium, moratoria in

          9  various venues, and were told, point blankly, we

         10  can't do it legislatively.  I'm interested to see

         11  how your city did it, thank you.

         12                 MR. MCQUILLIN:  Great.  Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         15  much.  I'd like to ask, I can't force you, but since

         16  there are people who have been standing for a long

         17  time, if you wanted to leave and are embarrassed to

         18  leave, please leave, so that they can have your

         19  seats.

         20                 Okay, next panel, I have Michael

         21  Slattery  -- thank you very much.  Is there a

         22  Michael Slattery still here?  Is Frank Sanchez still

         23  here?  Okay, no problem.  Michelle Adams we called,

         24  wasn't here.  No, yea.  Joseph Healy, are you here?

         25  If you can come up.  Who's the young man who
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          2  traveled from Long Island, who's really not far.

          3  What's your name?  I'm sorry, I couldn't.  Clarence

          4  Irving?  Find that one.  Kate Wood.  Of course, yea,

          5  sure.  Glenn Rice.  Is there a Glenn Rice here?  Is

          6  there a Glenn Rice here?  Okay.  Simeon Bankoff?

          7  How many seats -- are you here?  How many more do we

          8  have?  Yea, I have to save one, what is it? Yea,

          9  okay.

         10                 All right, we're just going to go

         11  from left to right.  Just to prove how much I hate

         12  Dick Cheney, okay?  No, you didn't like that joke?

         13  All right.  I'm sorry you were offended last time.

         14  I appreciate that, I appreciate that.  Okay, from

         15  right to left.

         16                 MR. SLATTERY:  Hi.  My name is

         17  Michael Slattery. I'm here with the Real Estate

         18  Board of New York.  Of all the people in this room,

         19  we've probably been the most visible critics of

         20  landmark preservation and landmark activity.

         21  However, in the last decade or so, the agency has

         22  really begun an effort to make property owners

         23  valued partners in the preservation process. And,

         24  that's happened through a number of ways.  One is by

         25  creating a permitting process that becomes more
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          2  routine, more handled at the staff level, and makes

          3  it more efficient and less costly for property

          4  owners.  I think that, in some ways, is an

          5  improvement.

          6                 In addition, I think the, the agency

          7  has also been attempting to codify treatment of

          8  items that currently come before it, in particular,

          9  windows, storefronts alike, and again, those, I

         10  think, are all benefits in a number of ways.  One,

         11  it's good for the property owner, it also frees up

         12  staff time, so they can do other kinds of

         13  activities.  Third, I think the Commission, in

         14  general, has moved, had made a process one which

         15  moves to a decision- making process and less to a

         16  process where it's a guessing game.

         17                 These, I think, are all benefits that

         18  are going on.  In context to some of the issues that

         19  were raised here, there is some concern about public

         20  hearings for landmarking, because as many of you

         21  know, a hearing is effectively a designation.  It,

         22  that comes regulated at that point, and I think that

         23  that opens up the process to one that will burden

         24  further the agency in terms of a regulatory process

         25  and opens up questions of what, questionable nature
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          2  of what merits designation.

          3                 I think it's important that this stay

          4  a professional organization, guided by principles,

          5  guided by professionals and not go down to a

          6  political process that becomes one of a popular

          7  vote.  Thank you.

          8                 MR. SEYMOUR:  My name is Whitney

          9  North Seymour Junior.  I used to be a member of the

         10  New York State Senate.  I succeeded McNeil Mitchell

         11  (phonetic), who was a sponsor of the Barred Law

         12  (phonetic), which began all this trouble.  I've been

         13  President of the Municipal Arts Society and active

         14  in landmark preservation and things for a long time.

         15    I've also been a Federal Prosecutor, both here in

         16  New York and in Washington as an independent

         17  counsel.  Is that enough identification?  Yes, an

         18  electric light is the best policeman, and there's

         19  something going on here that needs, I think, a

         20  little more attention to the public interest and

         21  making sure that everybody feels comfortable that

         22  the right kind of procedures are being followed.

         23  The point I'd like to leave.

         24                 MR. BANKOFF:  Good afternoon Council

         25  Members. Simeon Bankoff, Historic Districts Council.
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          2    I will do my, I will my darndest to stay both

          3  within my time and with on the topic.  I begin to

          4  like, I'd like to begin with saying that I would

          5  like to thank the Council for taking the initiative

          6  to do this Oversight Hearing.  We believe that

          7  public oversight is a welcome and important part of

          8  a government functioning in a democratic society.

          9                 Though no one likes getting a report

         10  card evaluation or work review, such things are

         11  necessary in order to properly assess our work,

         12  uncover the strengths and weaknesses in our

         13  performance, and to improve our performance, where

         14  necessary. We don't believe that this Hearing should

         15  be regarded as a reprimand or a denouncement, but

         16  rather as part of the public process that begins

         17  every fiscal year with the budget allocations, and

         18  ends with the MMR.

         19                 I'm going to start talking real fast.

         20    Our first recommendation is to the Council to urge

         21  regularly scheduled hearings of this nature, so the

         22  public and our elected officials can get a true

         23  sense of how the Administration is fulfilling this

         24  important job of caring for the public welfare,

         25  particularly with regard to the Landmarks
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          2  Commission.

          3                 I'm going to basically hit my points.

          4    The LPC, as many people have testified before and

          5  will testify again, is woefully understaffed and

          6  under- resources, comparing it versus the Buildings

          7  Department or City Planning, which are two similar

          8  agencies, at least in mission, you would have to

          9  say, would take twice the current funding of LPC to

         10  receive a, to create a barely equitable workload for

         11  its employees.  There's a widespread lack of

         12  transparency in the designation process that harms

         13  both the, the work of the Landmarks Commission and

         14  other City agencies and the concerned public, to say

         15  nothing of concerned citizens.

         16                 Our recommendation, again, going very

         17  quickly, would be that the Landmarks Preservation

         18  Commission should calendar all the buildings under,

         19  in consideration, either by the Designation

         20  Committee or by the research staff.  This would

         21  serve to alert both owners and other City agencies,

         22  particularly City Planning and Buildings, to LPC's

         23  interest, while allowing Landmarks the time to

         24  research and act on the designation, as Chair

         25  Tierney had mentioned.
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          2                 Finally, there have been concerns

          3  about transparency in the regulatory process, which

          4  has resulted in the environment where the concerns

          5  of the applicant are regarded more highly than the

          6  public, and the mission of the Landmarks Commission,

          7  as a preservation commission, rather than the design

          8  review commission has, in some small cases, become

          9  obscured.

         10                 Specific problems include lack of

         11  public notice of permits approved, permits that are

         12  greatly amended without public input.  We would

         13  recommend that the Council and the agency work

         14  together to create a public notification system of

         15  all pending and approved LPC permits, and that

         16  Landmarks attempt, adopt guidelines that require re-

         17  opening the public record on permits after a certain

         18  threshold of amendment.

         19                 These guidelines would benefit both

         20  the public and the applicants, with the assurance

         21  that what's proved at a public hearing would be what

         22  is built.  Let me say, I've got four pages, which

         23  I've handed out to you.  If anyone's interesting,

         24  they will be posted on my website.  Thank you.

         25                 MR. WOLFE:  Mr. Chairman, my name is
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          2  Tom Wolfe.  I want to thank you very much for this

          3  opportunity.  I'm hoping you can solve, that is the

          4  Committee, for me, one of the most strangest

          5  oddities and mysteries in governmental process in

          6  this City in my 42 years of being a journalist here.

          7                 I've followed this particularly case

          8  very, very closely.  Back in 1964, when Penn Station

          9  was being demolished, a building by the most famous

         10  modernest architecture in the United States, without

         11  question, was designed and completed and that, just

         12  about a year later, as Chairman Tierney mentioned,

         13  the Landmarks Preservation Committee was founded.

         14                 That building, since it was built in

         15  1964, could not be subject to landmarking until

         16  1994.  1994 came and despite the fact that the

         17  National Trust for Historic Preservation and the,

         18  the New York Society, Preservation Society

         19  considered it the, one of the handful of most

         20  endangered buildings in the nation and in the State

         21  of New York, and despite the fact that the reigning

         22  historian and scholar of, of 20th Century

         23  architecture in America, Robert Stern (phonetic),

         24  now Dean of Architecture at Yale, has called it a

         25  crucial building, to perceive, this particular
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          2  building was not seen, as if it were somehow

          3  invisible, by Landmarks Committee.

          4                 I'm, of course, talking about the

          5  former, Huntington Hartford (phonetic) Gallery of

          6  Art, at number Two Columbus Circle.  How this could

          7  have been ignored by the Landmarks Commission,

          8  ignored to the extent that never did the, a

          9  Commissioner respond --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Mr. Wolfe --

         11                 MR. WOLFE:  -- Only a --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Mr. Wolfe, I'm

         13  sorry, with all due respect.

         14                 MR. WOLFE:  Thank you very much for

         15  the opportunity.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I apologize.

         17  Maybe there will be some other Hearing which will

         18  deal not with administrative things, and, in fact,

         19  as I mentioned, maybe my colleagues, Chairman

         20  Perkins of Government Operations, maybe that's the

         21  place that it should be addressed.

         22                 MR. WOLFE:  Well, if you could, if

         23  you could --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  We appreciate

         25  you coming --
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          2                 MR. WOLFE:  -- Find out the

          3  administrative process in that case, I would be

          4  delighted.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          6  much.  Next.

          7                 MR. IRVING:  Thank you Mr. Chairman

          8  and Members of the City Council.  My name is

          9  Clarence Irving.  I'm the Chairman of the Black

         10  American Heritage Foundation, which I founded in

         11  1984.  The purpose of, of the Foundation is to

         12  document, preserve and decimate information about

         13  the accomplishments of African Americans.  One of

         14  our major goals is to inculcate in our young people

         15  the spirit of good citizenship and a full awareness

         16  of African American cultural heritage.

         17                 Ebony Magazine once made a claim that

         18  St. Albans Queens was the home of more celebrities

         19  than any other U.S. Residential area.  The York

         20  College -- is there a problem with that?  Thank you,

         21  thank you.  I'm a little sensitive because I, I'm a

         22  little sensitive because I lived there for 43 years.

         23    Thank you.

         24                 The York College BAHF Music History

         25  Archive can document that Count Basie, Earl Bostic,
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          2  Wild Bill Davis, Harry Mills, Mercer Ellington, Milt

          3  Hinton, Illinois Jacquet, Fats Walker, Cootie

          4  Williams, Lester Young, James Brown, Rose Morgan,

          5  Slam Stewart, Clarence Williams, Perry Brandford,

          6  James P. Johnson, Ben Webster, William Grant Still,

          7  Dr. Eileen Sullivan, Shirley Graham DuBois, Rose

          8  Morgan, Lena Horne, all lived in this community,

          9  along with Jackie Robinson, Roy Campanella, Herbert

         10  Christmas and Rose Morgan.

         11                 The historic homes should be

         12  landmarked, landmarks of the City of New York.  I

         13  have worked for many years to raise public awareness

         14  of our musical heritage in Queens.   BAHF,

         15  incidentally, is named, is an acronym for Black

         16  American Heritage Foundation, mapped the Black

         17  American Heritage Trail in Jamaica, and we have

         18  organized many concerts and other educational

         19  programs over the years.  We've established an

         20  archive.  Thank you so much.  I think that was my

         21  time.  My pleasure.

         22                 MR. TUNG:  Mr. Chairman, Members of

         23  the Council. My name is Anthony M. Tung, and I live

         24  at 36 Cooper Square in Manhattan.  I am a former

         25  member of the New York City Landmarks Preservation
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          2  Commission, serving as a Commissioner from 1978 to

          3  1988, and author of Preserving the World's Great

          4  Cities, a study of conservation practice in 18

          5  cities around the globe.

          6                 The report before you today,

          7  sponsored by the Women's City Club is a thoughtful

          8  and measured document, an indicator of serious

          9  failures in the performance of that agency. I have

         10  four brief comments relative to this matter.  Of all

         11  the groups in the City, the authors of this report,

         12  the grassroots citizen preservationists, are the

         13  people who monitor the Commission's work most

         14  thoroughly, attending every public meeting and

         15  checking the results in the field in regard to

         16  thousands of applications every year.  No other

         17  constituency knows the work of the Commission as

         18  well.

         19                 Two.  None of the issues of concern

         20  in their document are new.  These are long- standing

         21  problems, some growing worse in recent years, and to

         22  which neither the Commission nor the Mayor's Office

         23  has responded.

         24                 Three.  Some of this behavior,

         25  including backdoor negotiations with developers and
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          2  property owners, failure to schedule revised

          3  certificate of appropriateness applications for

          4  public review, capricious exercise of standards in

          5  regard to designations, and inadequate hearing room

          6  sound system, so that the public cannot listen to

          7  the Commission's discussions, demonstrates an

          8  institutionalized lack of transparency and fairness

          9  in the public process and an attitude of contempt in

         10  the agency's interaction with citizens.

         11                 Given -- four, and finally, given the

         12  deaf ear of the Commission and the Mayor's Office,

         13  the only people capable of correcting such

         14  misconduct are you, this Committee, which I thank

         15  for holding this Hearing, and which I hope will

         16  schedule further Hearings to ensure that the

         17  Landmarks Commission remedies these abuses.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Councilwoman

         19  Brewer, please.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Yes, I have a

         21  question for you.  When you were on the Commission

         22  for the ten years, and I remember your distinguished

         23  service there, how did topics, again I'm speaking

         24  very generically now, how did topics that may not

         25  make it to the Commission itself, how were they
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          2  addressed?  In other words, were you, as a

          3  Commissioner, apprised of them?  Or, was it done by

          4  the staff, and then maybe you heard about it

          5  afterwards?  In other words, you understand, I'm

          6  just trying to get a sense of the process.

          7                 MR. TUNG:  Yes.  Council Member,

          8  there's two answers to this.  Okay?  First, I was

          9  not the Chairman, so I was serving as an unemployed

         10  representative from the City.  Okay. So, the two

         11  answers to this are this.  There's maybe three

         12  answers.

         13                 First, first, while I was

         14  Commissioner, from time to time, there were advanced

         15  ideas in the procedures and administration of the

         16  Commission, like having discussions over lunch about

         17  the political ramifications of various issues, that

         18  violated the Sunshine Law (phonetic).  It's just

         19  that simple, okay?  The law says, I believe at that

         20  time there couldn't more than three people in the

         21  room.  When that happened, I stood up and said, this

         22  is wrong.  It's a violation of the law, if you do

         23  it, I'll leave the room.  Okay.  Every Commissioner,

         24  regardless of how much money is in the City's

         25  budget, is responsible to honor not just the letter
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          2  of the law, but the spirit of it.

          3                 Now, the list I read, which is only a

          4  synopsis of a much longer list from the Women's City

          5  Club, alludes to a whole series of actions at the

          6  Commission.  You can probably write, if you go

          7  through that list, you'll see there are seven or

          8  eight practices there questioning that all are

          9  improprieties in terms of the spirit, and I believe

         10  in the letter sometimes, of the Landmarks Law and

         11  the laws for Sunshine and public disclosure.

         12                 In regard to your question, which has

         13  to do with the question of designations, and I

         14  won't, I'm not going, I want to speak, Mr. Chairman,

         15  about the administrative procedure here of

         16  designations, but I want to use Two Columbus Circle

         17  as an example, in this way.  During the history of

         18  the Landmarks Commission, various designations were

         19  tested in the courts for their constitutionality.

         20                 What the courts said was, there has

         21  to be rational proof of the validity of the

         22  designation.  So, they asked for things like, well

         23  has a famous historian said this meets a standard

         24  for designation?  Has it been described in history

         25  books?  They asked for documentary proof that you,
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          2  to substantiate the designation.  One of the ways

          3  the Commission then was able to provide that in

          4  designation reports, was at public hearings having

          5  people like Tom Wolfe or Robert A. M. Stern, come

          6  forward and testify.  That's documentary proof.

          7                 The problem here in regard to the

          8  question of not just Two Columbus Circle, but a

          9  whole series of buildings that people are discussing

         10  here and bringing up as items.  The, the problem is

         11  that the Commission, in Two Columbus Circle, if you

         12  take the list of the people who have come forward in

         13  favor of that, and you look at those names, there's

         14  two things that are important about those names.

         15  One is, many of those names are the names that the

         16  Commission uses to verify its, other designations.

         17  In other words, these are recognized experts that

         18  the Commission has used to rationalize other

         19  designations in the City.  So, that's one thing.

         20                 Two, if you look at the thousand or

         21  more individual designations that have been made by

         22  the Commission, I would venture to say that about 40

         23  percent of them have less substantial proof than the

         24  argument that has been made for Two Columbus Circle.

         25    So, now, what happens here, is someone in the
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          2  public sits outside and says, wait a minute, there

          3  are 20 designations made in the past two years in

          4  which Robert A. M. Stern and, is cited as a source

          5  for documentary proof.  Here he is on this list, as,

          6  and as well as three dozen or even more other

          7  experts that have been cited for proof in other

          8  designations.

          9                 So, how can this be when there's more

         10  proof here that the Commission won't even listen.

         11  That's the point, Mr. Chairman, that the Commission

         12  won't even listen.  But, that's where your Oversight

         13  Committee becomes so important, because I, you know,

         14  if you take that Women's City Club report, you will,

         15  and go through it, I'm sure you will be able to come

         16  up with a series of questions.  There will be eight

         17  or nine questions on the performance of the

         18  Commission in terms of its transparency. That's the

         19  basis for an agenda, for a hearing six months from

         20  now and a year from now.  I'm sorry the Chair of the

         21  Commission wasn't here to hear this.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I just follow-

         23  up on your experience and it's very important for us

         24  to benefit from that. When I asked the question of

         25  the Commissioner about six people being in charge of
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          2  determining the status of a particular building, in

          3  your experience, having only six people in there is

          4  sufficient?  Is insufficient?  How that compare to

          5  what should be in there in regard of mentioning 200

          6  applications that have not been going through?  Now,

          7  how difficult is this?  How complicated?  How much

          8  time- consuming it is?  And if six people sound, to

          9  you, that is okay?

         10                 MR. TUNG:  I believe, Council Member

         11  Lopez, that the Chairman referred to six people

         12  because it takes six people to make a legal action.

         13  Six Commissioners, but -- no?  He said six people in

         14  the room?  Okay.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  No, I asked

         16  him specifically about employees --

         17                 MR. TUNG:  Okay, okay.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- Who go over

         19  the question of the belief  --

         20                 MR. TUNG:  In either case, in either

         21  case, this is fundamentally wrong.  But, what I

         22  think needs to be understood by the Committee, is

         23  that there are a whole series of procedures at the

         24  Commission, which, over the, really it's over

         25  probably ten or 15 years, have mutated to become
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          2  abuses.  It's occurred very slowly, and that's why

          3  everyone is here and why people are out in the

          4  hallways.  Even with such short notice.  If you gave

          5  fuller notice to this, you'd have three times as

          6  many people here, because, but it's hard to come to

          7  grips with.  I now it's hard for you in reading that

          8  document.  It's hard for everyone to come to grips

          9  with.

         10                 The problem with the designation

         11  process was initially there was a committee set up

         12  that would just triage the, the items, and then

         13  report back their results to the full Commission.

         14  As a member of the Commission, when I was sitting

         15  there, and they, and triage was performed without

         16  my, my being invited to the meeting, I just simply

         17  said, I'm coming.  I want to hear, because I wanted

         18  to hear all the facts, right?  And then --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  You're not

         20  answering --

         21                 MR. TUNG:  -- And then --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  -- My

         23  questions --

         24                 MR. TUNG:  -- And then when the

         25  triage system -- I am answering it, and then when
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          2  the triage results were given, I challenged them if

          3  I didn't agree with it.  So, what I'm saying is,

          4  there has been a disintegration of the process, so

          5  that now, the gentleman from the real estate board

          6  has just said something that is not legally true,

          7  but is understood to be true across the whole City.

          8  That, if something is calendared, that if something

          9  is calendared, it's tantamount to designation.  That

         10  has been a practice that has evolved over the past

         11  decade.  It's wrong.

         12                 Something is calendared because it

         13  meet, it had, there is a substantial argument for

         14  it.  Then, the Commission has a public hearing

         15  because it needs to hear from the people of the

         16  City, because the Commission does not act with

         17  impunity as if it's knowledge is the only knowledge

         18  in the City.  It act, it talks to everyone because

         19  there are people like Tom Wolfe around the corner

         20  willing to come out and talk, who know something

         21  about this.  So, you try to listen to people.

         22                 What's happened here is there has

         23  been a closure of that process.  That's why people

         24  are angry.  It's closing down.  Then, when they come

         25  forward with like a case like the ones you've heard
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          2  about today, which are, have been so substantiated

          3  and the Commission won't respond --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I'm sorry.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Is there a

          6  Beverly Moss Spatt here?  Where is there?  We are

          7  taking not one panel, one person, one person.

          8  That's what we're doing, and then we are going to

          9  stop until the next hearing.  You can go to the

         10  desk.  Your recessed to the next Hearing, you're

         11  getting special attention. Go ahead, go ahead, thank

         12  you very much.  Okay, ssshh, please. Sure.

         13                 MS. MOSS:  I'm the last speaker?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Well, before,

         15  we're, since you lost one lens, you'll have three

         16  minutes instead of two. Councilman Perkins, who

         17  Chairs the Government Operations Committee, would

         18  like to say something.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I just want

         20  to, I just briefly want to make sure that it's clear

         21  that my Committee will be having a Hearing on this

         22  matter as well, so that this Council is going to

         23  thoroughly look at the concerns that have been

         24  raised by your presence, as well as by your

         25  testimony, as well as by your letters and e- mails
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          2  that I, personally, have received.  So, rest

          3  assured, that this is not the last time we'll be

          4  together on this.

          5                 MS. MOSS:  Thank you, Chairman

          6  Felder, Honorable Members of the Committee on,

          7  concerned with Landmarks.  Thank you for the

          8  privilege of permitting us to appear before this

          9  Hearing.  My name is Beverly Moss Spatt, I'm a

         10  former member of the City Planning Commission, a

         11  former Chairman of the Landmark Preservation

         12  Commission, former Professor of Barnhart College,

         13  former Director of League of Women Voters, an

         14  Honorary Member of the American Suit of Architects

         15  and I have a doctorate in planning and preservation.

         16    I come here to praise Landmark Preservation, the

         17  constituency, not to bury it.  I have written to the

         18  present Chairman of Landmark Preservation

         19  Commission, with a copy to the Mayor, but I never

         20  received a reply.

         21                 As a past public servant with four

         22  Mayors, more or less, I am aware, as I'm sure you

         23  are, that government must be accountable to the

         24  public, and that informed public participation is

         25  the cornerstone of democracy.  As past Chair of the
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          2  Landmark Preservation Commission, listening to what

          3  your questions, I and my commissioners and staff,

          4  was able to develop a master plan.  We implemented

          5  the master plan with about 15 programs, and we also

          6  knew what the consequences would be of that.

          7                 Another major objective of ours was

          8  to make our work and our decisions meaningful,

          9  responsible and responsive to the community people,

         10  who are our partners for preservation, not to the

         11  private interests, though we were concerned with

         12  private interests, and not the political interest,

         13  though we are concerned with political interest, we

         14  were a part of government. Underlying this goal was

         15  openness, transparency and collegiality. A

         16  constituted dimension of our work was creating space

         17  for public dialogue at all stages.  Albeit consensus

         18  and dissent.  Dissent is a very positive thing in a

         19  democracy.

         20                 Historically, the Preservation

         21  Commission always was the Commission's ally, but in

         22  my over 30 years in government, I have never seen

         23  such a division between the public and Landmark

         24  Preservation Commission.  I have never seen such

         25  anger, such resentment and I feel very badly in
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          2  terms of a former government official, and I feel

          3  very badly for the Council, and I feel badly for the

          4  whole City Administration, because, unfortunately,

          5  it reflects on government.

          6                 Currently, preservation and the

          7  public interest are like the vestal virgins of

          8  antiquity.  While presumably worshipped, are soon

          9  sacrificed.  I am aware that the Commission's budget

         10  is less than it used to be, but when I was Chair, we

         11  were during the fiscal crisis -- you remember the

         12  fiscal crisis? And with the help of the Mayor and of

         13  the City Council, Tom Cute (phonetic) was the

         14  Majority Leader at the time, and there were perhaps

         15  some of you.  I know Koppell was in government at

         16  the time, and we were able to gain some money and we

         17  were able to reach out to the public, and we were

         18  also able to implement about 15 new programs.

         19                 Now, if the powers that be, and I've

         20  said this before, but nothing happens, wished the

         21  City to get more money for landmark preservation,

         22  there are loads and loads of programs in the Federal

         23  Goverment, like the Committee Development Block

         24  Grant Program, where, which talks about

         25  preservation, the Department of Interior, the
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          2  Department of Transportation, Housing and Urban

          3  Development, et cetera.  They could allocate money

          4  to Landmark Preservation Commission, which is what

          5  we did.  We established a staff of more than six

          6  people.  We had a whole survey staff, surveying the

          7  whole City, plus the fact that we had a very large,

          8  a very large research staff, under Margaret Tuff

          9  (phonetic).

         10                 This Hearing concerns the isolation

         11  of Landmark Preservation Commission and the total

         12  disregard for public opinion.  Simeon Golov (sic),

         13  Historic Districts Council, has mentioned some of

         14  the issue, like transparency at every level of the

         15  designation process, and I would say that

         16  transparency at every level of the CMA's and the

         17  CME's, et cetera.  The inability of interested

         18  persons and groups to learn of pending action, the

         19  unavailability to the public of materials and plans

         20  relating to CMA's to CME's and the --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Can you please

         22   --

         23                 MS. SPATT:  -- Designation.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  -- Conclude.

         25                 MS. SPATT:  The inability to discuss
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          2  matters and staff members, to meet with staff

          3  members.  There's no reason they can't meet with

          4  staff members.  Our Commission was always open.

          5  They met with me, they met with the Commissioners.

          6  We're the public servants, parenthetically, and the

          7  past Landmark Preservation Commission was open,

          8  staff, which was expert, and I respect the staff

          9  that's at the Commission now, and Executive

         10  Director, staff and plans were available to the

         11  public ahead of hearings, not Friday before the

         12  hearing.  That's much too late to consider plans and

         13  complexed plans --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  All right, I'd

         15  like to thank you --

         16                 MS. SPATT:  I'm going to add, we need

         17  for better- I'm going to take the privilege of one

         18  more minute.  We need for better --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  You've done that

         20  already.

         21                 MS. SPATT:  -- Coordination and

         22  collaboration with other City agencies, because they

         23  are important in the landmark process.

         24  Unfortunately, it appears that the current

         25  Administration will adhere to the preservation
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          2  rules, guidelines and public interest only when the

          3  people demand it.  I don't know whether the

          4  Administration of Landmarks is aware over the recent

          5  outcry over, I'm not mentioning the buildings, from

          6  individual persons, from civic groups, from

          7  newspapers, people like Herbert Moshad (phonetic)

          8  and others, that we, that there is now --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  All right --

         10                 MS. SPATT:  I'm finishing.  Now

         11  there's an --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No, you said a

         13  little while ago --

         14                 MS. SPATT:  -- Informed, aroused

         15  peaceful citizenry of constituency  --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Excuse me.

         17                 MS. SPATT:  -- Of hundreds of

         18  thousands of people --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  We're going to

         20  have to put out the lights.

         21                 MS. SPATT:  Put them out --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Alright.

         23                 MS. SPATT:  -- That will hold

         24  government --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay.
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          2                 MS. SPATT:  -- Accountable --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Sorry.

          4                 MS. SPATT:  -- For the, ignoring the

          5  public interests --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I want to thank

          7  you --

          8                 MS. SPATT:  -- The community people

          9  are the equilibrium of our City.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I want to thank

         11  you for coming to testify and I want to thank all of

         12  you for attending and, again, if you want to make

         13  sure that you're notified about the next Hearing

         14  that will take place, you should make sure that the

         15  Sergeant at Arms has your name and address and your

         16  phone number, just in case they can't reach you.

         17  Have a good evening.

         18                 (Meeting adjourned at 5:45 p.m.)

         19                 (The following testimony was read

         20  into the record)

         21  TESTIMONY OF:

         22  HISTORIC DISTRICTS COUNCIL

         23  Statement before Landmarks Subcommittee of the City

         24  Council

         25  Regarding Oversight of Procedures and Practices of
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          2  The Landmarks Preservation Commission

          3  October 20, 2004

          4  Summary

          5                 The Historic Districts Council is the

          6  citywide advocate for New York's historic

          7  neighborhoods. We welcome this opportunity to

          8  discuss the current practices of the Landmarks

          9  Preservation Commission and would to thank the City

         10  Council for their leadership in this important

         11  matter.

         12                 HDC believes that public oversight is

         13  a welcome and important part of governmental

         14  functioning in a democratic society.  Although no

         15  one likes getting a report card, evaluation or work

         16  review, such things are necessary in order to

         17  properly assess your work, uncover the strengths and

         18  weaknesses in your performance in your given tasks

         19  and to improve performance where necessary.  HDC

         20  does not believe that this hearing should be

         21  regarded as a reprimand or a denouncement, but

         22  rather as part of the public process that begins

         23  every fiscal year with the budget allocations and

         24  ends with the Mayor's Management Report.

         25                 HDC's first recommendation to the
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          2  Council would be to urge regularly scheduled

          3  hearings of this nature so that the public and our

          4  elected officials can gain a truer sense of how the

          5  administration is fulfilling its important job of

          6  caring for the public welfare.

          7                 Further recommendations are as

          8  follows:

          9                 One.  The Landmarks Preservation

         10  Commission is woefully under-staffed and

         11  under-resourced.  Simply put, to compare LPC to

         12  other agencies performing similar functions; last

         13  year Buildings issued eight times as many permits as

         14  Landmarks with 17x the personnel, and City Planning

         15  issued less than a twelfth of Landmarks permits with

         16  six times the personnel.  This calculation does not

         17  account for landmarks designated versus approved

         18  Certificates of Occupancy and rezonings, but those

         19  numbers follow the same general trend.  In order for

         20  Landmarks to perform its mandated mission, the

         21  administration must provide more funding; using the

         22  baselines of other agencies as examples, it would

         23  take twice the current funding the LPC receives to

         24  create a barely equitable workload for its

         25  employees.
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          2                 Two. A wide-spread lack of

          3  transparency in the designation process harms both

          4  the work of the Landmarks Commission, other city

          5  agencies and the concerned public- to say nothing of

          6  concerned citizens.  Currently, a "designation

          7  committee" exists that makes decisions on which

          8  properties are to be considered as landmarks outside

          9  of public scrutiny.  HDC believes this is in

         10  violation of the New York State Open Meetings Law.

         11  Furthermore, This policy of opacity leads to several

         12  problems:

         13                 Lack of Public Awareness and Support

         14                 Conflict between Agencies

         15                 Poor Preservation Practice

         16                 HDC understands that there is

         17  reasonable resistance to the notion of creating an

         18  official list of buildings under Landmarks

         19  consideration, in that buildings under consideration

         20  without protection may suffer from damaging

         21  alterations or even demolition before LPC has a

         22  chance to act. Therefore, HDC recommends that the

         23  Landmarks Preservation Commission "calendar" all

         24  buildings under consideration, either by the

         25  Designation Committee or by the Research staff.
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          2  This would serve to alert both owners and other city

          3  agencies (notably City Planning and Buildings) to

          4  the LPC's interest while allowing Landmarks the time

          5  to research and act on the designation.

          6                 Three.  There are major concerns

          7  about transparency in the regulatory processes of

          8  the LPC.  This has resulted in an environment where

          9  the concerns of the applicant are regarded more

         10  highly than the public and the mission of the LPC as

         11  a preservation commission rather than a design

         12  review commission has, in some cases, become

         13  obscured.  Specific problems include:

         14                 Lack of Public Notice of Permits

         15                 Approved Permits that are Greatly

         16  Amended without Public Input

         17                 HDC recommends the Council and the

         18  agency to work together to create a public

         19  notification system of all pending and approved LPC

         20  permits and that the LPC adopt guidelines that make

         21  require re-opening the public record on permits

         22  after a certain threshold of amendment.  These

         23  guidelines would benefit both the public and the

         24  applicants with an assurance that what is approved

         25  at public hearing would be what is built.
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          2  Introduction

          3                 The Historic Districts Council is the

          4  citywide advocate for New York's historic

          5  neighborhoods.  We are an independent, nonprofit

          6  agency which acts to encourage preservation of New

          7  York City's valuable historic resources, and to

          8  further the preservation ethic.  It is my pleasure

          9  to have this opportunity to speak on the current

         10  practices of the Landmarks Preservation Commission,

         11  a matter of utmost concern to all preservationists

         12  and concerned New Yorkers, and I would like to thank

         13  the Subcommittee for their leadership on this issue.

         14  Oversight of government practices is an integral

         15  part of the democratic process and we congratulate

         16  the council members on taking their initiative in

         17  this matter.

         18                 We would like to frame our comments

         19  with that thought in mind; that public oversight is

         20  a welcome and important part of governmental

         21  functioning in a democratic society. Although no one

         22  likes getting a report card, evaluation or work

         23  review, such things are necessary in order to

         24  properly assess your work, uncover the strengths and

         25  weaknesses in your performance in your given tasks
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          2  and to improve performance where necessary.  HDC

          3  does not believe that this hearing should be

          4  regarded as a reprimand or a denouncement, but

          5  rather as part of the public process that begins

          6  every fiscal year with the budget allocations and

          7  ends with the Mayor's Management Report.  HDC's

          8  first recommendation to the Council would be to urge

          9  regularly scheduled hearings of this nature so that

         10  the public and our elected officials can gain a

         11  truer sense of how the administration is fulfilling

         12  its important job of caring for the public welfare.

         13  Staffing and Budget

         14                 The Landmarks Preservation Commission

         15  is a very small agency charged with a very large

         16  mandate- identifying, designating and regulating the

         17  built forms of New York City's heritage.  The agency

         18  had an budget of $3.6 million in the past fiscal

         19  year, and is responsible for overseeing more than

         20  two percent of the real estate in New York City,

         21  issuing more than 7,900 permits.  Although the staff

         22  does an astonishing job, especially given their

         23  strained circumstances, frankly put, the agency is

         24  in dire need of further resources.  Even given the

         25  recent increase of the enforcement and preservation
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          2  staff, the quantity of work demanded of them verges

          3  on the inhumane and as the public demand for

          4  preservation increases, their workload will only

          5  grow more overwhelming.  While money can not solve

          6  every problem faced by the Commission, and will not

          7  address every concern expressed by the public, it

          8  will got a really far way towards helping.

          9                 As a comparison:

         10  Agency                        Permits Issued      Total

         11  Personnel

         12  Department of Buildings       64,948              901

         13  Department of City Planning   610 applications    318

         14                                (referred to public

         15  review)

         16  Landmarks Preservation

         17  Commission                    7,782               53

         18                 Simply put, Buildings eight times as

         19  many permits as Landmarks with 17x the personnel,

         20  and City Planning issued less than a twelfth of

         21  Landmarks permits with six times the personnel.

         22  This calculation does not account for landmarks

         23  designated versus approved Certificates of Occupancy

         24  and rezonings, but those numbers follow the same

         25  general trend - the Landmarks Preservation
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          2  Commission is woefully under-staffed and

          3  under-resourced.  In order for the agency to perform

          4  its mandated mission, the administration must

          5  provide more funding; using the two other agencies

          6  cited as examples, it would take twice the current

          7  funding the LPC receives to create a barely

          8  equitable workload for its employees.

          9  Designation

         10                 A wide-spread lack of transparency in

         11  the designation process harms both the work of the

         12  Landmarks Commission, other city agencies and the

         13  concerned public- to say nothing of concerned

         14  citizens.

         15                 Last year, 233 requests for

         16  evaluation were received from organizations and

         17  individuals and were reviewed by Landmarks staff,

         18  this volume is noted in the Mayor's Management

         19  Report as consistent with previous years.  Of these

         20  requests, 15 items- three historic districts and 12

         21  individual sites- were designated and approximately

         22  six more were considered by the LPC in public

         23  hearings.  What happened to the rest?  Is there a

         24  plan for these sites?  Are they all undeserving of

         25  landmark status? According to official LPC
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          2  information, there is a "designation committee" that

          3  considers requests for evaluation.  This committee's

          4  existence is collaborated by a number of

          5  communications HDC has received from the Landmarks

          6  Commission mentioning the Designation Committee and

          7  referencing either its further interest in a

          8  property or its negative evaluation of a request.

          9  However, there is no public record of the agendas

         10  for that committee, or minutes from its meetings.

         11  The committee does not have advertised meetings.

         12  HDC considers these practices to be in direct

         13  violation of the New York State Open Meetings Law,

         14  and has done substantial legal research into this

         15  issue which led us to this conclusion.

         16                 The policy of opacity leads to

         17  several problems:

         18                 One.  Lack of Public Awareness and

         19  Support:  How are community groups to know that a

         20  building is in the process of being considered or

         21  not?  In many cases, awareness of a building's

         22  significance can help create a supportive atmosphere

         23  that helps preserve a building even without landmark

         24  designation- through a greater public awareness.

         25  Recently, a number of buildings on the Bowery were
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          2  torn down, several months after having been

          3  submitted for evaluation to the LPC.  Had there been

          4  a greater awareness of these structures- through

          5  official acknowledgment of LPC consideration for

          6  example- more could have possibly be done to help

          7  preserve them.

          8                 Two.  Conflict between Agencies.  For

          9  six years now, the remainder of the proposed NoHo

         10  Historic District has been left unprotected because

         11  of "zoning issues," which have had the net result of

         12  the loss of a number of historic buildings in the

         13  proposed districts and a vast erosion of the

         14  district's sense of place.  On the other side of

         15  Manhattan island, the Far West Village suffers from

         16  the problem- where obvious historic structures which

         17  have been on the preservation radar screen for years

         18  are being torn down because of inappropriate "as of

         19  right" zoning.  In Brooklyn, DUMBO and individual

         20  buildings such as the Austin Nichols Warehouse are

         21  also caught in the limbo between two city agencies.

         22                 Three.  Poor Preservation Practice.

         23  The specter of political agendas always haunts any

         24  discretionary government process; that is implicit

         25  in the nature of government.  However, it is not to
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          2  be encouraged and numerous examples of back- room

          3  deals have created situations which strain the

          4  credibility of the Landmarks Law.  Why hasn't Two

          5  Columbus Circle been given a public hearing?  Why

          6  hasn't St. Thomas the Apostle Church?  Why was only

          7  part of St. John the Divine designated?  Whatever

          8  happened to Kabriski Mansion in Flushing?  Even

          9  historic districts fall prey to these forces- both

         10  Murray Hill and Tribeca were strangely configured

         11  due to political pressures. That outside forces were

         12  affecting the designations is clear from the later

         13  expansions of those historic districts; they were

         14  obviously not slighted for architectural or

         15  historical worthiness.  The Landmarks Law has within

         16  it mechanisms to counter- balance any provable

         17  hardship; there is a hardship appeals process and

         18  there is the regulation process.  These tools should

         19  be used, instead of dubious deals with developers.

         20  Solutions

         21                 HDC understands that there is

         22  reasonable resistance to the notion of creating an

         23  official list of buildings under Landmarks

         24  consideration.  While we do not advocate practicing

         25   "preservation in private," there has been at least
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          2  one recently reported case, in the Madison Square

          3  North Historic District, where a building- owner

          4  once notified of the intention to calendar rushed

          5  over to the Department of Buildings and got a self-

          6  certified permit for a seven- story addition to a

          7  four- story building in the proposed district.

          8  Therefore, HDC recommends that the Landmarks

          9  Preservation Commission "calendar" all buildings

         10  under consideration, either by the Designation

         11  Committee or by the Research staff.  This would

         12  serve to alert both owners and other city agencies

         13  (notably City Planning and Buildings) to the LPC's

         14  interest while allowing Landmarks the time to

         15  research and act on the designation.  While this is

         16  not a perfect system, it does work and would prevent

         17  the destruction of worthy historic buildings.  This

         18  coupled with the proposed Delay of Demolition Bill

         19  (Intro 317) currently before City Council would

         20  combine to weave a fine- enough net to catch most,

         21  if not all, potential landmark structures before

         22  they are lost.  The additional burden on the LPC

         23  would be minimal- it would have required 233 votes

         24  to calendar last year, which only take about a few

         25  minutes each.  Any additional paperwork burden could
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          2  be alleviated by the increased staff so desperately

          3  needed by the agency.

          4                 Once calendared, the LPC would not be

          5  forced to designate at any faster rate, but would

          6  have the ability to designate quickly if necessary.

          7  In some cases, as more information is discovered

          8  about specific buildings or as more research is done

          9  on potential historic districts, they could be voted

         10  to be "de- calendared" if appropriate (as has

         11  happened recently) or when the actual districts were

         12  designated.

         13  Regulation

         14                 There are also major concerns about

         15  transparency in the regulatory processes of the LPC.

         16    It is a long- held administrative policy that the

         17  Landmarks Commission should become as efficient and

         18   "user- friendly" as possible when processing

         19  permits for work.  These work goals are measured in

         20  the Mayor's Management Report, which reports that in

         21  the previous fiscal year,?? Percent of all permits

         22  were process in under ten days. This, in itself, is

         23  a laudable achievement and one that should attest to

         24  the professionalism and dedication of the LPC's

         25  severely under- resourced staff.  However, this has
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          2  resulted in an environment where the concerns of the

          3  applicant are regarded more highly than the public

          4  and the mission of the LPC as a preservation

          5  commission rather than a design review commission

          6  has, in some cases, become obscured.

          7                 This situation is most evident in the

          8  lack of public notice of permits.  Until recently,

          9  there was no place where an interested citizen or

         10  neighbor could easily obtain a copy of an approved

         11  Landmark permit, this has recently been solved by a

         12  non- profit organization who has begun to post LPC

         13  and other city permits on a non- government website.

         14    We would like to take this opportunity to thank

         15  the LPC for their partnership with this valuable

         16  service and hope that the records will be extended

         17  to cover all currently- valid permits.

         18                 However, there is still no way for a

         19  neighbor to know if there is a Landmarks permit

         20  application pending, unlike Building permits.  This

         21  is particularly true for staff- level permits, which

         22  account for approximately 90 percent of all LPC

         23  permits issued annually.  Without knowing the

         24  details of staff level permits, the public is often

         25  taken by surprise by work on historic structures-
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          2  which can lead to confusion, consternation and in

          3  the worst cases, conflict.  This is particularly

          4  true for permits that fall under the LPC's

          5   "Restoration" rule- which is very loosely worded to

          6  allow massive alterations to protected buildings

          7  without public scrutiny.  HDC strongly recommends

          8  the council and the agency to work together to

          9  create a public notification system of all pending

         10  and approved LPC permits.

         11                 HDC once again stresses that the vast

         12  majority of staff- issued permits are a credit to

         13  the hard work of the Landmarks staff, and we believe

         14  that those cases when projects go awry- such as in

         15  Greenwich Village with the Annie Liebowitz House, or

         16  the uptown IRT stations- the fault mainly lies with

         17  the contractor or the applicant.  However, more

         18  resources for the agency would permit better

         19  scrutiny and oversight of projects, which would in

         20  turn benefit all parties concerned.

         21                 Of even greater concern are approved

         22  permits that are greatly amended without public

         23  input.  Sometimes, especially on large projects,

         24  after a lengthy public review process, circumstances

         25  arise that cause the applicant to amend the approved
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          2  project.  To the agency's credit, recently more of

          3  these projects have been returning to public

          4  meetings where the changes are presented to the

          5  Landmarks Commissioners for discussion and

          6  deliberation.  In some few situations, the record

          7  has been re opened and the public has been accorded

          8  the opportunity to weigh in on projects that have

          9  greatly altered over the course of the process.  HDC

         10  would like to thank the agency for the move in this

         11  direction, and would like to encourage this

         12  practice.  We recommend that the LPC adopt

         13  guidelines that make require re opening the public

         14  record on permits after a certain threshold of

         15  amendment.  These guidelines would benefit both the

         16  public and the applicants with an assurance that

         17  what is approved at a public hearing would be what

         18  is built.

         19  TESTIMONY OF:

         20  THE MUNICIPAL ARTS SOCIETY OF NEW YORK

         21  Testimony before the City Council Subcommittee on

         22  Landmarks, Public Siting and Maritime Uses Regarding

         23  the administrative functioning of the Landmarks

         24  Preservation Commission

         25  October 20, 2004
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          2                 New York City's Landmarks

          3  Preservation Law is a national and international

          4  benchmark.  It has been tested and proven sound, and

          5  is the model for cities across the country. When the

          6  Supreme Court affirmed New York City's decision to

          7  save Grant Central Terminal, the Court not only

          8  upheld the City's law, but also the entire Nation's

          9  ability to enhance and preserve the natural and

         10  built environment through land use laws.

         11                 It's not just the Landmarks Law that

         12  other cities emulate, but our preservation practice.

         13    We have exponentially more districts, more

         14  designated buildings and more diversity than any

         15  other city in the country.  Beyond saving individual

         16  buildings, our law and the way we implement it has

         17  also stabilized neighborhoods, increased property

         18  values and brought tourists to the city.  Perfection

         19  may be a goal, but we should recognize the

         20  Commission is currently doing an admirable job.

         21                 I say this because we need to be very

         22  measured in considering changes to the way our law

         23  is implemented.  Our overriding concern must be to

         24  protect the integrity and independence of the

         25  landmarks process.
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          2                 That being said, there is precedent

          3  for examining the landmark process and how it

          4  functions.  The last examination of the Landmarks

          5  Preservation Commission was undertaken from 1988-

          6  1989 by the Historic City Committee, led by William

          7  Conklin, a former commissioner.  The committee was

          8  composed of experts in preservation, community

          9  advocates and members of the Commission all under

         10  the auspices of the Municipal Arts Society.  They

         11  spent more than a year interviewing members of the

         12  Commission, its staff, the community and experts in

         13  all aspects of historic preservation.  After upward

         14  of 65 meetings, the committee developed a thoughtful

         15  set of recommendations concerning the Commission's

         16  operating procedures and set long- term goals for

         17  historic preservation in the city.  The committee

         18  brought together what were then disparate parties,

         19  analyzed their concerns, and coalesced then into

         20  constructive recommendations. That sort of careful

         21  consideration and drive for consensus is what's

         22  needed today.

         23                 The Landmarks Preservation Commission

         24  is an under funded agency with a very large mandate.

         25    There is consensus that there is a pressing need
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          2  for identification, designation and protection of

          3  more of our historic resources.  The Commission is

          4  fulfilling that mission, but we believe that with

          5  increased funding and staff, it could do more.  We

          6  greatly encourage the City Council to support an

          7  increase in funding.  Beyond that, we urge that any

          8  recommendations made today should be only considered

          9  through a deliberate and rigorous process.

         10

         11  TESTIMONY OF:

         12  MATTHEW BAUER

         13  PRESIDENT

         14  MADISON AVENUE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

         15                 Good afternoon.  I am Matthew Bauer,

         16  President of the Madison Avenue Business Improvement

         17  District, which represents Madison Avenue from East

         18  60th to East 86th Street. Most of the buildings

         19  within the Madison Avenue BID are located within the

         20  Upper East Side or Metropolitan Museum Historic

         21  Districts.  Madison Avenue is renowned as one of the

         22  world's great shopping destinations, featuring

         23  flagship boutiques of Ralph Lauren, Donna Karan,

         24  Yves Saint Laurent, Gucci, Versace, Cartier and

         25  Chanel.  Each one of these boutiques are known for
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          2  their distinctive design, yet thanks to the clear

          3  and consistent guidance of the New York City

          4  Landmarks Preservation Commission and their staff,

          5  each of these businesses fit harmoniously with one

          6  another within the streetscape of Madison Avenue.

          7                 The investment required to rent a

          8  storefront or purchase a commercial building on

          9  Madison Avenue is a significant one.  Indeed,

         10  Women's Wear Daily reported earlier this month that

         11  the average asking rent on Madison Avenue is $760.00

         12  per square foot.  In order to feel confident about

         13  making such a significant investment in bricks and

         14  mortar, prospective tenants and owners must feel

         15  assured their investment will retain its value over

         16  time.  The Landmarks Preservation law plays an

         17  extremely important role in this regard for it

         18  provides confidence that the ambiance and

         19  architectural detail which makes Madison Avenue so

         20  attractive for our retailers, restaurants and

         21  galleries is retained.

         22                 We would like to commend the LPC for

         23  its recognition of the need for the efficient review

         24  of Certificate of Appropriate and Certificate of No

         25  Effect applications.  In the period that the LPC

                                                            148

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  reviews applications (oftentimes the period right

          3  before a new store opens), rent is due from tenants

          4  to property owners, and taxes are due from property

          5  owners to the city.  Uncertainties regarding the

          6  timeframe of the review process, particularly for

          7  new businesses seeking to open on time for a busy

          8  shopping season, can serve as a disincentive for

          9  businesses to choose a location within a historic

         10  district, and can lead to real economic hardship.

         11  On Madison Avenue, the storefront design guidelines

         12  developed by the LPC have addressed this issue quite

         13  effectively, and have assured that prospective

         14  Madison Avenue businesses and their architects are

         15  cognizant of the Commission's design criteria and

         16  have a clear understanding regarding the time frame

         17  of the approval review process.

         18                 Thank you Council Members for holding

         19  this hearing, and I would be glad to answer any

         20  questions you may have.

         21

         22  TESTIMONY OF:

         23  BRIAN ELLNER

         24                 I want to thank the Committee and the

         25  Chair for the opportunity to testify today.
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          2                 My name is Brian Ellner, and I am the

          3  former President of the District Two School Board in

          4  Manhattan, and a former member of Community Board

          5  Five, appointed by Manhattan Borough President C.

          6  Virginia Fields.  I am a native New Yorker.

          7                 Today you'll hear about numerous

          8  systemic issues plaguing the Landmarks Preservation

          9  Commission, all of which can and must be remedied.

         10                 I want to briefly highlight three

         11  issues that I find particularly distressing.

         12                 First, the Commission clearly needs

         13  increased funding from the City.  A budget of just

         14  over three million dollars is insufficient to staff

         15  and support an organization to research and review

         16  thousands of properties throughout five boroughs.

         17                 The City fails to recognize that

         18  there is a disastrous inverse relationship between

         19  institutional support and public need.  From St.

         20  Aloysius and across Harlem, to Chinatown, to the

         21  Upper East Side, there is a clear and compelling

         22  need for a Commission that will vigorously and ably

         23  pursue preservation.

         24                 This under- funding and subsequent

         25  under- staffing makes fulfillment of even the
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          2  Commission's basic duties difficult, jeopardizing

          3  timely and effective preservation and opening the

          4  door to demolition.

          5                 Secondly, we need more transparency

          6  from the Commission itself.  The public must be an

          7  equal partner in these discussions and today's

          8  hearing is a good start.

          9                 The decisions made on preservation

         10  affect our City's neighborhoods and the quality of

         11  life of their residents. The Commission's processes

         12  must be transparent, open and responsive to public

         13  participation- from the selection of commissioners,

         14  to the consideration of Certificates of

         15  Appropriateness, to the set of criteria upon which

         16  preservation decisions are based.

         17                 Along these lines, and following

         18  comments from former LPC Chair Gene Norman, we must

         19  never let owner opposition become the sole basis for

         20  the denial of a designation hearing. Sadly, when the

         21  value of historic preservation goes head to head

         22  with the value of the quickest and highest sale, we

         23  can see that preservation efforts don't stand a

         24  chance.

         25                 That leads me to my final point.  We
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          2  all know that there are moments when the concern of

          3  a few becomes a cause for many, and we have reached

          4  that point with the Edward Durrell Stone building at

          5  Two Columbus Circle.  From groups like Landmarks

          6  West, to former Commission chairs, to Herbert

          7  Muschamp at the New York Times, a chorus is rising,

          8  for preservation yes, but also simply for a fair

          9  hearing.

         10                 A hearing is not too much to ask, and

         11  I would like to add my voice to this chorus, and

         12  urge the Commission to immediately set a Designation

         13  Hearing date for Two Columbus.

         14                 I am not confusing a hearing with

         15  actual designation.  No one here today is.  But it

         16  is important that the City and other property owners

         17  move beyond thinking of these hearings as a

         18  roadblock or a resistance, but as an opportunity to

         19  weigh the merits of each particular case, an

         20  opportunity to consider more than just the bottom

         21  line, and an opportunity to reach a decision that is

         22  reasoned and responsible.

         23                 A hearing will not guarantee the

         24  preservation of Two Columbus or any other property,

         25  but in granting a hearing the Commission will have

                                                            152

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  at least saved itself from doing unnecessary damage

          3  to both its reputation and to the fabric of landmark

          4  law itself.  History has been unkind to those who

          5  rush to destroy, and the lesson of places like Penn

          6  Station must guide us.

          7                 As the City enters a period of

          8  intense development, it is important to remember

          9  that preservation is vital to New York's unique

         10  identity.  All of us here today share a common goal:

         11  Helping the Landmark Preservation Commission best

         12  realize its mission: Identifying and protecting our

         13  City's treasured architectural history, timely and

         14  transparently designating landmarks, and improving

         15  interaction with the individuals and communities

         16  affected by its decision- making processes.

         17                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         18  address these important issues today.

         19

         20  TESTIMONY OF:

         21  CARL WEISBROD

         22  PRESIDENT

         23  ALLIANCE FOR DOWNTOWN NEW YORK, INC.

         24                 I'd like to first thank the Landmarks

         25  Preservation Commission for its hard work and
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          2  diligence in preserving historic districts and

          3  landmarks throughout the city, and particularly in

          4  Lower Manhattan.  Historic resources are an

          5  important part of the neighborhood character

          6  Downtown.

          7                 As you know, numerous buildings

          8  within the boundaries of our business improvement

          9  district- the area roughly south of Murray Street-

         10  are designated landmarks.  Many of these are art

         11  deco skyscrapers, historic bank buildings, or early

         12  20th century commercial buildings that have been

         13  coverted into apartments.  Over the years many of

         14  these landmarks have been altered, and have followed

         15  the procedures of the Landmarks Commission to secure

         16  necessary approvals.  Due to the rules promulgated

         17  by the Commission, these buildings have been able to

         18  receive many of their permits in an expeditious

         19  manner.

         20                 The usefulness of the agency's rules

         21  can be seen easily in the example of Stone Street,

         22  which was one of the New World's very first paved

         23  streets, part of the colonial street grid of New

         24  Amsterdam.  A bustling, thriving thoroughfare for

         25  several centuries, Stone Street had fallen into
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          2  disrepair, leaving its storefronts decayed and

          3  vacant.

          4                 We partnered with the Landmarks

          5  Preservation Commission to designate Stone Street as

          6  a historic district, a move that allowed the

          7  Commission to apply for federal funds to restore the

          8  street.  We also teamed up with the city's

          9  Department of Transportation and Department of

         10  Design and Construction, which constructed a new

         11  street bed, laid new bluestone sidewalks and a

         12  granite curb, and installed old- style lighting

         13  fixtures. The project set the stage for new

         14  commercial development while preserving Stone

         15  Street's historic charm.

         16                 Today, Stone Street is an only- in-

         17  New York setting for an appealing cluster of

         18  restaurants and bars; every summer evening finds a

         19  festive crowd strolling along Stone Street to enjoy

         20  its sidewalk cafes.  This project is an excellent

         21  example of how historic preservation can promote

         22  economic development.

         23

         24  TESTIMONY OF:

         25  RACKSTRAW DOWNES
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          2                 I would like to commend the Landmarks

          3  Preservation Commission for the generally beneficial

          4  influence it has had on the Soho Cast Iron Historic

          5  District.  In many of its decisions it has given

          6  serious attention to the community's concerns.

          7                 However, in the case of the proposed

          8  development known as 341 Canal Street, on Block 299

          9  on the north- west corner of Canal and Greene

         10  Streets, I submit that things have not proceeded in

         11  an appropriate manner.  A one- story commercial

         12  building was first proposed two years ago.  It was

         13  opposed by the Community Board, and turned down by

         14  Landmarks.  Then, at the Community Board meeting

         15  last Thursday, October 14, 2004, a totally different

         16  building, of six full stories plus a partial

         17  seventh, providing fifty- eight residential units,

         18  and ground floor retail, was introduced as having

         19  been already passed on by Landmarks.  This was a

         20  total surprise to the Community Board and to the

         21  neighboring community.

         22                 I submit that this procedure was

         23  incorrect.  If the changes made by a developer

         24  constitute, not modifications to an existing design

         25  but a totally new design, then a second public
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          2  hearing should be mandatory.

          3                 The number of residential units which

          4  are markedly smaller than the characteristic Soho

          5  loft now proposed, plus introduction of extensive

          6  first- floor retail space on this block of Greene

          7  Street which is notable for the almost complete

          8  absence at present of any retail activity, means a

          9  huge impact on, and drastic changes to the

         10  neighborhood.  The community and the Community Board

         11  were given no chance to voice their views on this

         12  project by the Landmarks Commission, even though

         13  this impact is totally incommensurate with the

         14  original proposal.

         15                 I submit that this complaint

         16  concerning a particular situation has general

         17  application to all Landmarks Preservation Commission

         18  proceedings in the future.

         19

         20  TESTIMONY OF:

         21  ROSALIND KRAUSS

         22                 Like so many artists and members of

         23  the arts community of New York, I bought property in

         24  Soho with every penny of my modest financial means,

         25  and poured into its renewal all my time and energy,
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          2  to help, as we all did, to create the homogeneous

          3  community that now exists in our District.  If we

          4  did this, it was because we were assured that the

          5  Landmarks Commission would protect the architectural

          6  integrity of the cast iron district, sensitive both

          7  to the aesthetic value of the community and to the

          8  needs of its inhabitants for light and air.

          9                 Our disappointment in the performance

         10  of the Landmarks Commission over the past decade has

         11  been intense.  The continuous cornice lines that we

         12  understood the Commission was committed to enforce

         13  have been punctured by tall towers, totally out of

         14  keeping with the character of the neighborhood.  An

         15  egregious case in point is the Aldo Rossi Scholastic

         16  Building on Mercer Street between Prince and Spring

         17  streets.

         18                 Indeed, the Commission seems to be

         19  unduly impressed by projects designed by

         20  internationally known architects and subsequently to

         21  approve of their designs.  Aldo Rossi is one such

         22  case; another is the hugely bulky building on the

         23  corner of Broadway and Grand designed by Jean

         24  Nouvelle.

         25                 Recently the Commission approved a
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          2  project for a condominium building on the corner of

          3  Canal and Greene streets (341 Canal) without

          4  notifying the residents of the adjoining buildings

          5  of the hearing.  The proposed project exceeds the

          6  FAR regulation is and will break the cornice lines

          7  of all the other buildings on the street.  It is

          8  also in violation of 74- 712, the law passed last

          9  year to regulate properties of this type.

         10                 As a law- abiding citizen of this

         11  District I have come to love, I have submitted all

         12  plans for any renovation of my building to Landmarks

         13  for their approval.  Our building has consistently

         14  abided by whatever decision Landmarks has made.

         15                 Now I urge you most fervently to

         16  charge Landmarks to keep development in Soho within

         17  a tolerable limit.  Other irreplaceable communities

         18  in New York have been irrevocably destroyed by over-

         19  development.  The most obvious of these is Greenwich

         20  Village.

         21  TESTIMONY OF:

         22  GREENWICH VILLAGE SOCIETY FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION

         23                 Good afternoon Council Members, and

         24  thank you for the opportunity to speak to you today

         25  regarding the Landmarks Preservation Commission.
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          2                 The Greenwivh Village Society for

          3  Historic Preservation (GVSHP) was founded in 1980 to

          4  preserve the architectural heritage and cultural

          5  history of the Village, and is the largest

          6  membership organization in Greenwich Village. GVSHP

          7  serves as a watchdog for the six historic districts

          8  and numerous individually designated landmarks in

          9  Greenwich Village, the East Village, and Noho, and

         10  we advocate for the designation of the unprotected

         11  historic resources in the Greenwich Village

         12  neighborhood.

         13                 Due to the limits of time imposed

         14  today, we cannot enumerate all reasons for praise or

         15  concern that we have about the functioning of the

         16  Commission.  We will instead focus on those issues

         17  that cause us the most concern and that we believe

         18  the Council can help mitigate by working with the

         19  LPC.

         20                 GVHSP's greatest concern is the fact

         21  that the Commission is too understaffed and under-

         22  funded to do the work asked of it and to ensure that

         23  it carries out its mission of protecting the City's

         24  current and potential landmarks.  Even when we have

         25  been extremely pleased with the actions of the
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          2  Commission, we are aware that the agency sometimes

          3  has had to make a Solomon's choice of which

          4  proposals to act upon with the very limited

          5  resources afforded it.  On the other hand, when we

          6  have disagreed with the LPC's lack of action on

          7  important items that we believe merited its

          8  attention, we have been aware sometimes this same

          9  lack of resources has been a significant cause of

         10  the problem.

         11                 Lack of resources also means that

         12  there is only one inspection officer of the entire

         13  agency.  As a result, enforcement is almost entirely

         14  dependent upon reports from the public, and the

         15  response can be slower than it should.  Likewise,

         16  proposals for designation can sometimes take years

         17  or longer for action by the Commission.  While there

         18  are multiple reasons for this, a lack of resources

         19  is without a doubt a significant factor in many of

         20  these cases.  Clearly, the public has taken on the

         21  enormous role of identifying potential landmarks for

         22  the Commission and providing a significant volume of

         23  historic research, building data, and scholarly

         24  support in order for such proposals to move forward.

         25    While we would not deny that there is some value
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          2  in the public participating in the process in this

          3  way, it is clear that there is a significantly

          4  greater dependency upon the public's provision of

          5  these resources than there ideally should be.  This

          6  is evidenced by the fact that the agency no longer

          7  has a survey department to identify potential sites

          8  and areas for designation.

          9                 Lack of resources can also affect the

         10  Commission's ability to act swiftly to protect

         11  historic resources which have been identified as

         12  worthy of consideration.  All too often, the

         13  identification of an area by the public (and in some

         14  cases, the Commission) for potential landmarking

         15  serves as a signal for owners or developers to move

         16  ahead with demolition or alteration plans.  The

         17  Commission must be able to act swiftly to protect

         18  historic resources if they merit preservation, and

         19  in many cases it seems as though such potential

         20  landmarks do not get to the point of receiving such

         21  a full evaluation.  Overall, under current

         22  conditions, though a number of excellent

         23  designations have been made both at the public and

         24  the Commission's initiation, the process can at

         25  times be very reactive and very slow, and valued
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          2  sites or areas can be lost.

          3                 Other issues of concern to us include

          4  the process by which the Commission chooses those

          5  individual landmarks and historic districts it will

          6  bring forward for a designation hearing.  We believe

          7  a more transparent process would be helpful to both

          8  the Commission and the public.  In addition, the

          9  public often does not have adequate information

         10  about work on designated landmarks approved at staff

         11  level.  The Center for New York City Law has made

         12  available through its website the LPC's Certificate

         13  of Appropriateness decisions, and we hope that

         14  something similar could be done with the staff level

         15  permits the Commission issues. Finally, the decision

         16  about which projects can be approved at staff level

         17  and which must go before the Commission for a

         18  Certificate of Appropriateness seems to us sometimes

         19  to be inconsistent.

         20                 I thank you for your time.  I hope

         21  that you can use your power next spring to increase

         22  the Commission's budget for the Fiscal Year 2006,

         23  and I ask that you work with Commissioner Tierney

         24  and his staff to make improvements on the concerns

         25  raised here today.
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          2

          3  TESTIMONY OF:

          4  SHAWN P. BRENNAN

          5  PRESIDENT

          6  THE METROPOLITAN CHAPTER OF VICTORIAN SOCIETY IN

          7  AMERICA

          8                 Founded in New York City in 1966, the

          9  Victorian Society in America is dedicated to

         10  fostering the appreciation and preservation of our

         11  heritage from the nineteenth and early twentieth

         12  centuries.  The Metropolitan Chapter, oldest of

         13  numerous chapters now flourishing throughout the

         14  country, is an independent organization affiliated

         15  with the national society.

         16                 The Victorian Society thanks the City

         17  Council's Subcommittee on Landmarks, Public Siting

         18  and Maritime Uses for holding this oversight hearing

         19  regarding the Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         20  Over the years, the Victorian Society has worked

         21  with the Landmarks Preservation Commission in

         22  regards to protecting New York City's architecture

         23  and sites of the Victorian era.

         24                 It has been our experience that many

         25  of the difficulties when dealing with the Commission
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          2  stem from its inadequate funding.  Over the years,

          3  the Commission has continued to designate more

          4  historic districts and individual landmarks.

          5  However, rather than receiving increased funding in

          6  the City's budget to enable the agency to handle the

          7  additional workload, the Commission's budget has

          8  routinely dwindled.  The Commission now has less

          9  staff than it did twenty years ago, yet it has a

         10  greater number of buildings to regulate.  Increased

         11  funding would allow the Commission to hire more

         12  staff and thus better protect, regulate, and monitor

         13  the city's 23,000 landmarked buildings.  A larger

         14  budget for the LPC also would enable the agency to

         15  increase their research staff so that the staff

         16  could survey the City for potential designations and

         17  so that the staff could handle more designations

         18  each year.

         19                 The Victorian Society is also

         20  concerned about the lack of transparency in many of

         21  the Commission's actions.  For instance, how the

         22  agency decides which buildings and historic

         23  districts it will put forth for a designation

         24  hearing is a closely guarded secret that has eluded

         25  the community's understanding in recent years.  In
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          2  addition, the public and the preservation community

          3  are not invited to participate in the choice of

          4  Commissioners for the agency.  Since the Council

          5  confirms all appointments to the Commission, the

          6  Victorian Society asks that you only approve

          7  Commissioners who are sympathetic to preservation

          8  goals and who have an understanding of historic

          9  preservation values.

         10                 Lastly, the Victorian Society asks

         11  that the Council assist the Landmarks Commission in

         12  better communicating with other city agencies, like

         13  the City Planning Commission, the Board of Standards

         14  and Appeals, and the Department of Buildings, in

         15  order to better protect the city's historic

         16  resources.

         17

         18  TESTIMONY OF:

         19  JOHN AND ANNA HOWARD

         20                 NYC Council oversight hearing on the

         21  Landmarks Preservation Commission

         22                 In May 2005 I will have been a New

         23  Yorker for 30 years.  It is a privilege to live and

         24  work in the city I fell in love with while on a

         25  student exchange in 1966.  Like most adopted New
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          2  Yorkers I have a sense of propriety about NY.  I

          3  belong to it and it belongs to me.

          4                 This is why I am outraged that the

          5  Mayor, the Museum of Arts and Design and the LPC are

          6  conspiring to destroy one of New York's important

          7  buildings- Two Columbus Circle.

          8                 Beyond the aesthetic merits of Two

          9  Columbus Circle, of which I am sure you will hear

         10  much, this is one of several notable NY buildings

         11  that Edward Durrel Stone designed.  He lived and

         12  practiced here and, starting in the thirties, was

         13  involved in many important NY projects during his

         14  lifetime.

         15                 The Bible of NY buildings, Willensky

         16  and White's great AIA Guide lists some them.  They

         17  demonstrate the range and diversity of his NY

         18  output.  The original MOMA, Radio City Music Hall,

         19  The GM Building, P.S. 199 at West 70th Street and

         20  his residence at 130 East 64th Street.  This last, I

         21  am sure, would have outraged some of the

         22  preservationists gathered here, for he obliterated

         23  an East Side bay windowed brownstone with a delicate

         24  concrete block grille!

         25                 Stone was as important to NY as Mckim
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          2  Mead and White and Carrere and Hastings.  Every one

          3  of his buildings is a statement of belief that

          4  architecture should speak as much to the general

          5  public as it does to the cultural and aesthetic

          6  elites. In this he always succeeded and it is

          7  probably for this reason that he is so derided by

          8  these elites.  Stone did not pander however.  Like a

          9  good New Yorker he liked to confront and go against

         10  the grain.  But all of his work was built to

         11  exacting standards for quality.  For proof of this I

         12  recommend a visit to the administration building he

         13  designed at LIJ Hospital on the Queens/Nassau

         14  border.

         15                 I urge the City Council to demand

         16  that the LPC hold a public hearing on the future and

         17  hopefully the preservation of Two Columbus Circle.

         18  A great New York building by a great New York

         19  architect.

         20

         21  TESTIMONY OF:

         22  GLADYS TINSLEY

         23  PRESIDENT

         24  ST. AGNES APARTMENTS H.D.F.C.

         25                 Attached please find detailed
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          2  documentation regarding the land marking of 41

          3  Convent Avenue and the attached buildings that make

          4  up the (6) building of Convent of Sacred Heart.

          5                 This documentation goes back from

          6  1991 to the present and we sincerely hope that this

          7  will further clarify our request and zeal for land

          8  marking our buildings.

          9            Please feel free to contact us for any

         10  additional information.

         11  TESTIMONY OF:

         12  SOPHIE JOHNSON

         13  PRESIDENT EMERITUS

         14  ST. AGNES APARTMENTS H.D.F.C.

         15                 Good afternoon Commissioner Tierney

         16  members of subcommittee of City Council Landmarks,

         17  public siting and maritime uses and land use and all

         18  other interested members and the Adhoc committee of

         19   "Preservationist" that are Aegis of Women's City

         20  Club of New York and co-chaired under Ms. Ludwig and

         21  Ms. Rosen have been meeting and trying hard to work

         22  with Land mark Commission to preserve and protect

         23  and designate Convent Gardens Apartment Houses.

         24                 We the residents of 41 Convent Avenue

         25  implore you to review the testimony we have
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          2  submitted to Landmarks Commission from 1991 through

          3  2001.  We were promised individual landmark

          4  designation for 41 Convent Avenue.  We never

          5  received answers to any or our letters we sent to

          6  the Commission, nor did the elected officials or

          7  preservationist that sent letters of support for our

          8  designation receive an answer.  We preserved and

          9  protected our building in 2001.  We then asked for

         10  HISTORIC DISTRICT designation that would include the

         11  six other buildings that belong to the "Convent of

         12  Sacred Heart.

         13                 We are a community and district of

         14  rich with architecturally cultural, religious and

         15  educational institutions but we are the least

         16  historically protected.  We are now in the twenty-

         17  first century.  We are at a risk of losing our

         18  community to institutional expansion and profit

         19  developers.  We have to address this THREAT now with

         20  sensitive, thoughtful historic preservation through

         21  landmark protection designation and historic

         22  preservation legislation.  This will ensure the

         23  community to hold fast to our architectural and

         24  cultural legacy and historically preserve our

         25  community.  Thank you.
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          2

          3  TESTIMONY OF:

          4  IVAN MRAKOVCIC R.A.

          5  CHAIR, QUEENS COMMUNITY BOARD NUMBER NINE

          6  FOUNDING PRESIDENT; RICHMOND HILL HISTORICAL SOCIETY

          7                 Good afternoon, Mr. Felder, and

          8  members of the Committee,

          9                 My name is Ivan Mrakovcic.  As

         10  chairman of Queens Community Board Number Nine,

         11  founding president of the Richmond Hill Historical

         12  Society, and an architect practicing with New York

         13  City, I would like to take this opportunity to

         14  express the frustration felt within my community

         15  regarding the inability of the Landmarks

         16  Preservation Commission to help us preserve the most

         17  valued portions of our historic and significant

         18  community.

         19                 I am confident that you are aware of

         20  Richmond Hill's pivotal legacy in the development of

         21  the "garden suburb" ideal during the late 1800's; if

         22  not you can explore the history of Richmond Hill at

         23  www.richmondhillhistory.org.  Barry Lewis described

         24  the areas' development and significance at the 2003

         25  Historic Districts Council seminar.  Although New
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          2  Jersey's Llewellyn Park (circa 1852) is our regions'

          3  first example of this utopian planned community,

          4  Richmond Hill is renowned as the first execution of

          5  such a vision within the boundaries of New York

          6  City.  This Victorian- era solution to inner city

          7  blight is focused on a major commuter rail line

          8  (L.I.R.R.), certainly predates the Dougalston Manor

          9  district, and has more historic and architectural

         10  relevance than the recently enacted yellow brick

         11  road in Ridgewood.  The wood- framed Victorian

         12  community became home to Jacob Riis, and was a

         13  realization of the escape from the tenements that

         14  choked Manhattan Island.  Specifically, the area

         15  between Jamaica Avenue and Forest Park maintains the

         16  allure and lush environment recorded in Philip

         17  Evergood's WPA mural "The Story of Richmond Hill".

         18                 Our efforts to preserve the eclectic

         19  Queen Anne homes began in 1998 with our Application

         20  to the Commission, accompanied with a letter to

         21  Commissioner Raab.  Subsequent letters to

         22  Commissioner Paulsen and Mr. Tierney have fallen on

         23  deaf or pre- occupied ears.  We did receive the

         24  tersest of rejections from Ms. Betts in March 2001,

         25  with no explanation, support, or opportunity for
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          2  discourse.  This struck us as a great injustice

          3  because the history and architecture have been

          4  deemed worthy of landmark consideration by:  Queens

          5  Community Board Number Nine, Queens Borough

          6  Historian, Historic Districts Council, Assemblyman

          7  Maltese, Assemblyman Seminario, Central Queens

          8  Historical Association, Richmond Hill Block

          9  Association, Former Council Member Karen Koslowitz,

         10  Historian Barry Lewis, and Council Member Dennis

         11  Gallagher.

         12                 Speaking of Council Member Gallagher,

         13  he helped us to meet with Commissioner Paulsen where

         14  we learned that during their supposed field work,

         15  the field workers went up the wrong blocks.

         16  Basically we were denied because they got lost.

         17                 We subsequently scaled back our

         18  proposed districts with several mini- districts but,

         19  due to the Commission being understaffed, uncaring,

         20  or motivated by political pressure to focus

         21  elsewhere, we have been practically ignored and

         22  definitely underserved.  I greatly value the work of

         23  the Commission but we seek to preserve not only

         24  brownstones in Manhattan, Brooklyn or the wealthy

         25  cottages of far eastern Queens.  The Commission must
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          2  become more user- friendly, dare I say less

          3  arrogant, and work with worthy communities such as

          4  mine.

          5                 Even the recent designation of the

          6  Richmond Hill Republican Club (2003) is in danger of

          7  becoming a hollow victory. The building is a stand

          8  alone neo-classical structure designed by Henry

          9  Haugaard, the architect responsible for the vast

         10  majority of our architecture, but is abandoned and

         11  in danger of deteriorating into oblivion.  Our

         12  efforts to contact John Weiss, at the Commission,

         13  requesting assistance regarding the community's

         14  options to help stabilize the structure have gone

         15  unanswered.  When that building sinks into the

         16  ground, like St Monica did, there is a real

         17  probability that my community will hold the

         18  Commission responsible.

         19                 On behalf of Queens Community Board

         20  Number Nine I hereby request the Commission be

         21  either better staffed or re evaluated so as to

         22  better serve our entire city.  Perhaps the

         23  Commission needs to be regionalized?  On a smaller

         24  scale; I request, again, that the Commission grant

         25  Richmond Hill a long overdue meeting to review and
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          2  expedite an agreeable solution that will help

          3  determine the fate of New York City's premier

          4   "garden suburb".  Thank you.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 5:45 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CHERYL MILLER, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 20th day of October 2004.
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                                   ---------------------

         25                          CHERYL MILLER
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          9            I, CHERYL MILLER, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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